# AGREEMENT between the

# CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION

and its

**CHAPTER 289** 

and the

# SANTA BARBARA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Santa Barbara, California



**July 2018 – June 2021** 

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE	
Article 1: RECOGNITION	
Article 2: DISTRICT RIGHTS	
Article 3: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	
3.2 Representation	
3.3 Informal Level	
3.4 Formal Level	
Article 4: EMPLOYEE RIGHTS	
Article 5: ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY	
Article 6: COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS	
6.1 Compensation	
6.1.2 Equitable Treatment/ Me Too Clause	
6.2 Benefits	
6.2.1 Health and Welfare Benefits	
6.2.2 Domestic Partnership Coverage in Medical Insurance	
6.3 Guidelines for Implementation of Classified Employees Salary Schedule	
6.3.1 Schedule of Ranges and Rates	
6.3.2 Employment Date and Anniversary Date	
6.3.3 Priority of Increases	
6.3.4 Increases Within the Salary Range	
6.3.5 Salary on Change in Range Assignment	
6.3.6 Special Compensation - "Y" Rate	
6.3.7 Restorations	
6.3.8 Shift Differential	
6.3.9 Salaries for Increments	
6.4 Career Increments for Classified Personnel	
6.5 Employee Expenses and Materials	
6.6 Physical Examinations	
6.7 Professional Growth	
Article 7: HOURS	
7.1 Alternate Work Schedules	
7.2 Overtime	
7.2.4 Compensatory Time Anocation Method	
7.4 Call Backs	
7.4 Can Backs 7.5 Telecommuting	
7.5 Telecommuning 7.6 Workweek	
Article 8: HOLIDAYS	
8.7 Academic Calendar	
Article 9: VACATION	
9.8 Illness and Bereavement While on Vacation	
Article 10: TRANSFER AND DEMOTION	
Article 11: PROMOTIONS	
Permanent Employee Preference	
Article 12: PROBATIONARY PERIOD	
12.1 Duration of Probation.	
12.2 Length of Probationary Period	
12.3 Not Subject to Grievance Procedure	
Article 13: SAFETY	
13.1 Safety Considerations	
Article 14 LAYOFFS	
Article 15: EVALUATIONS	
Article 16: LEAVE PROVISIONS	
16.1 Sick Leave	40

16.2	Use of AB109 Sick Leave for Family Members	41
16.3	Personal Necessity	
16.4	Industrial Accident and Industrial Illness Leave	42
16.5	Entitlement to Other Sick Leave	45
16.6	Bereavement Leave	
16.7	Jury Duty and Witness Leave	45
16.8	Maternity Leave	46
16.9	Miscellaneous Provisions	. 47
16.9		
16.9	·= =	
16.9	2.3 Additional Leaves for Non-industrial Accident or Illness	. 48
16.9	9.4 Absence Without Leave	48
16.9	9.5 Reporting of Absences	48
16.10	Family Care Leave	. 48
16.1		
16.1	0.2 Intermittent/Reduced Work Schedule Leave	. 49
16.1		
	Catastrophic Illness Leave Donation Program	
	Emergency Closures	
Article 17	7: Unit Members working in Part-Time Faculty Assignments	
Article 18	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Article 19	~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~	
Article 20	** ****	
Article 2	1: SUPPORT OF AGREEMENT	59
Article 22		
Article 23		
Article 24		
	DIX A: CSEA BARGAINING UNIT CLASSIFICATION TITLES	
	DIX B: HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS	
	DIX C: DISTRICT CLASSIFIED EVALUATION FORM	
	DIX D: POST CLASSIFICATION STUDY GRANDPERSON SCHEDULE 20	
	DIX E: CSEA SALARY SCHEDULE TABLE 29 CLASSIFIED & CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES	
	DIX F: TELECOMUTING GUIDELINES AND AGREEMENT FORM	
	DIX G: AB119 NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION	
	DIX H: ALTERNATIVE WORKWEEK SCHEDULE CHANGE FORM	
	DIX I: COMPENSATORY TIME/OVERTIME REQUEST FORM	
	DIX J: BOARD OF TRUSTEES RESOLUTION NO. 25 – APRIL 22, 1976	
APPEND	DIX K: RECOGNITION REQUEST LETTER – APRIL 2, 1976	94

# **PREAMBLE**

This Agreement is made and entered into this 26<sup>th</sup> day of September, 2019, by and between the Santa Barbara Community College District (hereinafter referred to as "District") and California School Employees CSEA and its Santa Barbara City College Chapter #289 or its successors (hereinafter referred to as CSEA).

# **Article 1: RECOGNITION**

- 1.1 The District hereby acknowledges that CSEA is the exclusive bargaining representative for that unit of employees recognized and defined by the District per its Resolution No. 25 (1975-76) dated April 22, 1976, which is incorporated herein, and attached hereto. The unit includes all employees in classified positions who are a part of the classified service, who are in or have completed the probationary period of the District, who receive personnel benefits, and who work twenty (20) hours or more per week. The aforesaid positions are described in Appendix A which is attached hereto and made a part hereof.
- 1.2 All newly created positions meeting the above specifications, except those that are Certificated, Management, Confidential or Supervisory shall be in the bargaining unit.
- 1.3 Disputed cases may be submitted by either the District or CSEA to the Public Employment Relations Board in accordance with Government Code Section 3545.

# **Article 2: DISTRICT RIGHTS**

It is understood and agreed that the District retains all of its powers and authority to direct, manage and control to the fullest extent of the law. Included in but not limited to those duties and powers are the exclusive right to: determine its organization; direct the work of its employees; determine the times and hours of operation; determine the kinds and levels of services to be provided, and the methods and means of providing them; establish its educational policies, goals and objectives; insure the rights and educational opportunities of students; determine staffing patterns; determine the number and kinds of personnel required; maintain the efficiency of District operations; determine the curriculum; build, move or modify facilities; establish budget procedures and determine budgetary allocation; determine the methods of raising revenue; contract out work as defined in Public Contract Code Section 20655; and take action on any matter in the event of an emergency. In addition, the Board retains the right to hire, classify, assign, evaluate, promote, terminate, and discipline employees.

The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities by the District, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations, and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith, shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement, and then only to the extent such specific and express terms are in conformance with law.

The District retains its right to amend, modify or suspend policies and practices referred to in this Agreement in cases of emergency as provided in Public Contract Code Section 20654.

Any amendment, modification or suspension shall be for a period not longer than the period of the emergency.

# **Article 3: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

#### 3.1 Definitions

A "grievance" is a formal written allegation by a grievant that the unit member has been adversely affected by a violation of the specific provisions of this Agreement. Actions to challenge or change the policies of the District as set forth in the rules and regulations or administrative regulations and procedures must be undertaken under separate legal processes. Other matters for which a specific method of review is provided by law, by the rules and regulations of the Board of Trustees, or by the Administrative regulations and procedures of this college district are not within the scope of this procedure.

A "grievant" is any unit member covered by the terms of this Agreement or a representative of the CSEA.

A "day" is any day in which the central administrative office of the Santa Barbara Community College District is open for business.

The "immediate supervisor" is the lowest level non-unit supervisor designated by management to administer grievances and having immediate jurisdiction over the grievant.

The "appropriate administrator" is the Vice-President for that department.

# 3.2 Representation

The CSEA Union Steward and the grievant will receive paid time off from duties for the processing of grievances pursuant to this grievance procedure. The unit member's who are designated as CSEA Union Stewards are subject to the following conditions:

- 3.2.1 By no later than sixty (60) days following the signing of this Agreement the CSEA will designate in writing to the Superintendent not more than eight (8) employees and their alternates, who are to receive the time off; the number of designated CSEA Union Stewards in attendance at grievance conferences and hearings shall be limited to one (1).
- 3.2.2 After notifying the unit member's immediate supervisor, a Union Steward shall be permitted to leave the unit member's normal work area during "reasonable times" in order to assist in presentation of grievances. The Union Steward shall advise the Supervisor of the grievant of the unit member's presence.

If, due to an emergency, an adequate level of service cannot be maintained in the absence of a Union Steward at the time of the notification, the Union Steward shall be permitted to leave the unit member's normal work area no later than two hours after the Union Steward provides notification.

- 3.2.3 Sixteen (16) hours prior to release from duties for grievance processing the designated Union Steward informs the unit member's immediate supervisor in order that an adequate substitute may be obtained, if such is necessary; and
- 3.2.4 That such time off for processing grievances shall be limited solely to representing a grievant in a conference with a management person, beginning at Level I, and in no way shall this limitation include use of such time for matters such as gathering information, interviewing witnesses, or preparing a presentation. Both the grievant and the District shall have the right to the assistance of legal counsel at any level of the grievance procedure beyond Level I. The grievant shall also have the right to the assistance of a CSEA staff representative at any level of the grievance procedure beyond the Informal Level. At least forty-eight (48) hours notice shall be given to all parties concerned when it is the intention of either party to be accompanied by legal counsel.

# 3.3 Informal Level

Before filing a formal grievance the grievant may attempt to resolve it by an informal conference with the unit member's immediate supervisor.

# 3.4 Formal Level

# Level I

Within thirty (30) days after the occurrence of the act or omission giving rise to the grievance, the grievant must present the unit member's grievance in writing to the unit member's immediate supervisor.

This statement shall be a clear, concise statement of the grievance, provision(s) of the Agreement alleged to have been violated, the circumstances involved, the decision rendered at the informal conference, and the specific remedy sought.

The supervisor shall communicate the unit member's decision to the unit member in writing within ten (10) days after receiving the grievance. If the supervisor does not respond within the time limits, the grievant may appeal to the next level.

# Level II

In the event the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level I, the unit member may appeal the decision in writing to the appropriate administrator within ten (10) days. This statement shall include a copy of the original grievance, the decision rendered, and a clear, concise statement of the reasons for the appeal.

The appropriate administrator shall communicate the unit member's decision within ten (10) days after receiving the appeal. If the appropriate administrator does not respond within the time limits, the grievant may appeal to the next level.

# Level III

If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level II, the unit member may within ten (10) days appeal the decision in writing to the Superintendent/President or their designee, provided that their designee is not the same person as at Level II.

This statement shall include a copy of the original grievance and appeal, the decisions rendered and a clear, concise statement of the reasons for the appeal.

The grievant shall, within the ten (10) day limit, have the right to request a personal conference with the Superintendent/President in order to present the grievance. At the personal conference, there will be no necessity to restate what has been previously set forth in the written grievance as the Superintendent/President will have reviewed it prior to the personal conference. Oral presentation should be limited to clarification and emphasizing any particular points that the grievant deems necessary.

The Superintendent/President or the unit member's designee shall communicate his decision to the grievant within ten (10) days after receiving the grievance or date of personal conference whichever comes later.

# Level IV

If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level III, the unit member may within ten (10) days of receipt of the decision or ten (10) days of the date the decision should have been issued if no decision was issued, appeal the matter to mediation. The written appeal shall be sent to the Superintendent/President with a copy to the Association.

The District will coordinate scheduling a meeting with a mediator from the California State Mediation and Conciliation Service as soon as reasonably possible for all parties.

# Level V

If the grievant is not satisfied with the outcome at Level IV or the grievant declined to pursue Level IV mediation, the unit member may appeal the Level III decision in writing to the Board of Trustees.

This appeal shall include a copy of the original grievance and lower level appeals, the decisions rendered, and a clear, concise statement of the reasons for the appeal.

The Board of Trustees, or their designee, shall communicate their decision to the grievant within a reasonable time after receiving the appeal and within ten (10) days of their decision. The decision of the Board of Trustees shall be final.

# **Article 4: EMPLOYEE RIGHTS**

The District and CSEA recognize the right of employees to form, join, and participate in lawful activities of employee organizations and the equal alternative right of employees to refuse to form, join, or participate in employee organization activities.

# **Article 5: ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY**

# 5.1 Membership and Dues Deduction

- 5.1.1 District shall insert CSEA-supplied membership applications to new hires (but not make any statement suggesting workers must join). District shall provide a jointly-agreed letter to new hires and anyone asking about *Janus v. American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, Council 31, et al.*, 585 US (2018), expressing District's desire to work cooperatively with CSEA due to its professionalism and strong support for increased school funding. District shall refer all employee questions about CSEA or dues over to the CSEA Labor Relations Representative. CSEA shall defend and indemnify District for any claims arising from its compliance with this clause. This agreement shall satisfy District's duty to bargain effects of *Janus* decision.
- 5.1.2 The District shall not interfere with the terms of any agreement between CSEA and the District's employee about that employee's membership in CSEA, including but not limited to automatic yearly renewal unless the worker drops out during a specified window period. The District need not keep track of this period which shall be tracked by CSEA within its membership database.
- 5.1.3 CSEA shall have the sole and exclusive right to receive the payroll deduction for regular membership dues.

# 5.2 Dues Deduction

- 5.2.1 The employer shall deduct, in accordance with the CSEA dues schedule, dues from the wages of all employees who are members of CSEA.
- 5.2.2 The District's managers, supervisors and confidential employees shall be neither positive nor negative regarding employees' decisions to belong to an employee organization or participate in activities. Managers, supervisors and confidential employees shall not instruct employees on the process to leave CSEA, but instead simply refer any questions to the CSEA Labor Relations Representative and shall obtain the unit member's approval on behalf of the union before processing any revocation request.
- 5.2.3 The employer shall not be obligated to put into effect any new or changed deductions until the pay period commencing thirty (30) days or more after such submission.

5.2.4 There shall be no charge by the employer to CSEA for regular membership dues deductions.

# 5.3 Membership Information

- 5.3.1 The District shall take all reasonable steps to safeguard the privacy of CSEA members' personal information, including but not limited to members Social Security Numbers, personal addresses, personal phone number, personal cellular phone number, and status as a union member.
- 5.3.2 The District shall reject all requests from outsiders for work email addresses for bargaining unit members for the purpose of solicitation, unless there is a court decision or law directing public agencies to release this information.
- 5.3.3 The District shall use its best efforts to filter out outsiders' emails to work email addresses soliciting against union membership. District shall only post on the public portion of its website work email addresses for employees whom the public needs to contact.

#### 5.4 Hold Harmless Provision

- 5.4.1 CSEA shall defend and indemnify District for any claims arising from its compliance with this article for any claims made by the employee for deductions made in reliance on information provided by the employee organization to the employer to cancel or change membership dues authorization. The employer shall be required to promptly notify CSEA of any claims made by employees relating to dues authorization.
- 5.4.2 CSEA shall have the exclusive right to decide and determine whether any such action shall be compromised, resisted, defended, tried or appealed.

# **Article 6: COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS**

# 6.1 Compensation

#### 6.1.1 2018 - 2019

Effective July 1, 2018, the salary schedule for classified employees shall be increased by a percentage equal to the received COLA in the adopted budget plus any difference received by other employee groups which will be deemed as equitable treatment. The actual amount received during this fiscal year was a 7% salary adjustment that comprised a 2.71% COLA adjustment plus a 4.29% equitable treatment adjustment.

2019 - 2020

Any salary adjustment for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 will be negotiated through reopener negotiations.

2020 - 2021

Any salary adjustment for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 will be negotiated through reopener negotiations.

# 6.1.2 Equitable Treatment/ Me Too Clause

The District and CSEA agree that this unit shall receive the benefit of any of the following which the District grants to, or unilaterally implements upon, any other bargaining unit (Faculty Association) or non-represented group (Educational Administrators, Classified Managers, and Confidential Employees). This provision applies in the following circumstances: (1) more favorable Cost of Living Increase; (2) more favorable across-the board increase in salary step schedules.

# 6.2 Benefits

#### 6.2.1 Health and Welfare Benefits

The District will fund the lowest cost 80% health insurance plan at the applicable rate effective October 1<sup>st</sup> of each plan year.

Unit Members will receive Health and Welfare Benefits according to Appendix B attached hereto and under the plans described therein.

Long-term disability (income protection) insurance is included as part of the mandatory benefit package for employees. The insurance plan pays a benefit of 66.66% of an employee's regular monthly compensation up to a maximum of \$5,000.

# 6.2.2 Domestic Partnership Coverage in Medical Insurance

Medical coverage is available for domestic partners of classified employees under the guidelines and procedures outlined below:

# a) Eligibility:

Santa Barbara City College (SBCC) will provide insurance coverage for Domestic Partners of the same or opposite sex and dependent children of Domestic Partners as follows:

- (1) The partners must be same sex and each partner must be over the age of 18 years or
- (2) The partners are of the opposite sex and at least one partner must be over the age of 62 years.

A domestic partnership shall be established when both persons file a State of California Declaration of Domestic Partnership with the Secretary of State.

The employee must notify the Human Resources Department in writing within thirty (30) calendar days of a Domestic Partnership.

# b) Documentation Required for Change in Status of Domestic Partner Coverage:

In the event the facts attested to in the Declaration of Domestic Partnership are no longer hold true due to termination of the relationship, death of a Domestic Partner, marriage to the Domestic Partner or any other cause, the employee must file a State of California Termination form with the Secretary of State.

The employee must notify the Human Resources Department in writing within thirty (30) calendar days of any change in the status of a Domestic Partnership.

After a termination of an existing Domestic Partner's coverage, a subsequent Declaration of a new Domestic Partner cannot be filed until six (6) months after written notification of termination has been filed.

Domestic Partners and their dependents are eligible for continuation of coverage under the federal COBRA law or state law regarding continuing coverage under California Labor Code Section 2800.2 and attendant California statutes.

#### c) Enrollment Deadlines

A. Employees currently employed, who later establish a Domestic Partnership eligible for coverage, have thirty (30) calendar days after becoming eligible to apply for coverage or must wait until the next open enrollment period to apply.

New employees hired after the original effective date of these procedures, who have a Domestic Partner eligible for coverage, have thirty (30) calendar days after applying for coverage in which to submit required paperwork or must wait until the next open enrollment period to apply (October 1 effective date).

B. An employee will not be required to wait unit the next open enrollment period if the employee can demonstrate that the union member is applying late because the Domestic Partner lost coverage previously applicable on a different benefit plan.

# d) Premium Payment / Tax Consequences

The value of the Domestic Partner coverage is considered additional compensation to the employee. Therefore the value of that additional coverage is subject to federal and state taxes as well as all other payroll deductions. STRS / PERS will not be withheld from or credited to this additional amount.

The employee is responsible for covering the cost of the premium of the Domestic Partner and the Domestic Partner's child(ren). If covering the Domestic Partner and the Domestic Partner's child(ren) increases the premium, the difference will be paid from the employee's wages as an after-tax payroll deduction. If the addition of the Domestic Partner and the Domestic Partner's child(ren) does not increase the current premium, then the value of the health coverage for the Domestic Partner and the Domestic Partner's child(ren) will be reported as taxable income to the employee. If the difference between the increase in the three-tier rate structure is less than the value of the health coverage for the Domestic Partner, the increased amount will be an after-tax payroll deduction and the difference will be included in the employee's includible income. The includible income will be reported on the employee's W-2.

# 6.3 Guidelines for Implementation of Classified Employees Salary Schedule

# 6.3.1 Schedule of Ranges and Rates

The compensation plan for all Unit Members of the Santa Barbara Community College District shall be consistent with the schedule of ranges or rates of pay as adopted by the Board of Trustees. Each class in the classification plan shall be assigned to the appropriate range or rate in the compensation plan upon recommendation of the Human Department and with the approval of the Superintendent and the Board of Trustees.

# 6.3.2 Employment Date and Anniversary Date

Whenever any unit member is appointed and begins working in a position on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month, the unit member's initial employment date shall be the first day of that month during which the unit member was employed as a unit member. If the employment commences on or after the sixteenth (16th) day of the month, the unit member's initial employment date shall be the first of the month following the date of the unit member's employment. A unit member's anniversary date is the date upon which a unit member is granted an earned salary increment. This is the first day of the pay period next following the successful completion of the established probationary period. The employment date affects salary. However, the anniversary date is changed when a unit member is promoted.

# 6.3.3 Priority of Increases

Whenever a unit member is promoted to a class with a higher salary range on the unit member's salary anniversary date the unit member shall first receive any within-range increase to which the unit member is entitled and then receive the higher step in the new salary range as provided in Section 6.3.9a of this Agreement.

# 6.3.4 Increases Within the Salary Range

Unit members shall be eligible for advancement to the next step of the salary range for their class after completing the probationary period. Eligibility for advancement will be on an annual basis thereafter until the unit member reaches the maximum salary step of the appropriate salary range.

Except for military leaves of absence, the granting of any leave of absence without pay shall cause the unit member's salary increase anniversary date to be postponed one (1) calendar month for each month or major fraction thereof of such leave taken.

#### 6.3.5 Salary on Change in Range Assignment

Whenever a class is reassigned to a higher salary range, the salary of each incumbent in such class shall be adjusted to the step in the new salary range that corresponds to the step the unit member was receiving in the former range.

Whenever a class is reassigned to a lower salary range, the "Y" rate principle shall apply. (See Section 6.3.6 and 6.3.9d(3) of this Agreement.)

# 6.3.6 Special Compensation - "Y" Rate

The "Y" rate principle is hereby defined as a rate of compensation in excess of the compensation provided by the step to which a unit member is assigned on the Basic Pay Plan, and such "Y" rate shall be discontinued when the employee ceases to occupy the position, or whenever the salary range assigned equals, or exceeds, such "Y" rate.

#### 6.3.7 Restorations

#### a) Reinstatement

A former permanent unit member who resigned in good standing may be reinstated in a vacant position in the unit member's former class and status within 39 months of the last date of paid service. Also, the unit member may be reinstated in a vacant position in a lower related class, if qualified, or in limited-term status in the same or lower class. Such actions are discretionary with the Board of Trustees.

A unit member who has taken a voluntary demotion may be restored to a vacant position in the unit member's former class or a vacant position in a related lower class, as determined by the Board, within 39 months. Except when demotion was chosen in lieu of layoff, restoration is discretionary with the Board of Trustees.

A unit member who has accepted demotion in lieu of layoff for lack of work, lack of funds, or abolishment or reclassification of the unit member's position, has the right to be reemployed in a vacant position in the unit member's former class within 39 months after demotion. Intervening reassignments to other classes shall not abrogate that right.

Reinstatement or reemployment of a former unit member shall have the following effects.

- (1) Restoration to the former step in the current salary range for the class, or, if restored in a lower class, to the rate closest to that of the step to which the unit member would be assigned if the unit member were restored in the unit member's former class.
- (2) If restored to permanent status, restoration of accumulated sick leave and seniority as of the date of the separation.
- (3) Restoration of former anniversary date and employment date but without longevity credit for the off-duty period.
- (4) Restoration of all rights, benefits and burdens of a permanent unit member in the class to which restored.

# b) Reemployment (Higher Class)

A former permanent unit member who resigned in good standing and who is reemployed, within 39 months of the last date of paid service, in a higher class than the unit member's former class at the time of resignation, shall be placed at the salary step that is closest to but greater than the current rate of the former step of the lower class at the time of separation. The unit member will serve a twelve (12) month probationary period in the new class, and advancement on the new salary range will occur only on the new anniversary date. Reemployment of a former unit member into a higher class shall have, after the successful completion of the probationary period, the following effects:

- (1) Restoration of accumulated sick leave and seniority as of the date of the separation.
- (2) Restoration of the unit member's former employment date but without longevity credit for the off-duty period.
- (3) Restoration of all rights, benefits, and burdens of a permanent unit member in the class to which restored.

# 6.3.8 Shift Differential

A shift differential is allowed for all classifications regularly assigned to a swing shift, a graveyard shift, and a split shift, according to the following differential rate schedule.

Swing Shift additional 3 1/2% increment

Split Shift additional 3 1/2% increment

Graveyard Shift additional 7 1/2% increment

In order to qualify for a differential compensation, the unit member is to meet one of the following definitions:

<u>Swing Shift</u> - When hours of work regularly assigned exceed 7:30 p.m. on a regular or alternate work week. Unit members must work this shift for at least three (3) of the five (5) normal work days.

<u>Split Shift</u> - When hours of work regularly assigned are split by two (2) or more hours exclusive of meal breaks for three (3) or more days per regular or alternate work week.

<u>Graveyard Shift</u> - When hours of work regularly assigned exceed 3:00 a.m. on a regular or alternate work week. Unit members must work this shift for at least three (3) of the five (5) normal work days.

Shift changes which involve a shift differential are subject to approval by the Board of Trustees.

# 6.3.9 Salaries for Increments

#### a) Promotion

(1) A unit member who receives a promotion to a class allocated to a higher salary range shall be placed on the new salary range with credit given for directly related full-time paid experience as follows:

0-23 months	Step 1
24-47 months	Step 2
48-71 months	Step 3
72-95 months	Step 4
96-119 months	Step 5
120 months or more	Step 6

Salary placement will guarantee not less than a 5% increase. A newly promoted employee may be placed on Step 7 due to extraordinary circumstances if approved by both the Area Vice President and the Vice President, Human Resources.

- (2) A new anniversary date is established at the time the promotion becomes effective.
- (3) The unit member will serve a 6-month probationary period to the new class. Advancement on the new salary range will occur upon successful completion of the established probationary period, and on an annual basis thereafter until the unit member reaches the maximum salary step of the appropriate salary range.

A permanent employee in the classified service who vacated the unit member's position to accept a probationary promotion to a class in a higher level and who is rejected during the probationary period shall be reinstated to the unit member's former class of position unless the reasons for which the unit member was terminated from the promotional position were such as to constitute cause for dismissal.

(4) Appointment of a unit member to a class with a salary range equal to the unit member's current range shall not be considered a promotion and shall not warrant a salary increase.

# b) Salary on Demotion

(1) Any unit member who is demoted for disciplinary reasons to a position in a class with a lower salary range shall be placed on the same step of the lower salary range as the unit member held on the range from which demoted. In cases of demotion for other than disciplinary reasons, and for good cause, the Board, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, may fix the salary of the unit member's demotion at any step within the appropriate salary range. In either case, the unit member's salary anniversary date shall not change.

(2) Any unit member who has taken a voluntary demotion, or is demoted for other than disciplinary reasons and for good cause and subsequently accepts a promotion to a higher class than the unit member's former class before the demotion, shall have the unit member's salary placement determined on the basis of the unit member's former higher class in accordance with promotional policies under 6.3.9a.

# c) Salary on Transfer

Any unit member who is transferred from one position to another position in the same class, or to another position in a class having the same salary range, shall be compensated at the same step in the salary range as the unit member previously received, and the unit member's salary anniversary date shall not change. Refer to Article 10 for process.

# d) Salary on Position Re-classification

The salary of the employee of a position which is re-classified shall be determined as follows:

- (1) If position is re-classified to a class having the same salary range, the salary and anniversary date of the incumbent shall not change.
- (2) If the position is re-classified to a class which has a higher salary range, then the incumbent shall be placed on the step of the new salary range that is the same as the step the unit member was on in the previous range.
- (3) If the position is re-classified to a class which has a lower salary range, the salary of the incumbent shall be adjusted to the step in the new range which provides the same salary the unit member was receiving immediately preceding the effective date of the new range. If there is not such step, the unit member's salary shall be adjusted as provided here-in-below.

#### (a) Step-Assignment

- (1) If the current salary of the employee is less than the maximum salary for the new class, the unit member shall be assigned to the step in the new range having a salary nearest the salary the unit member was receiving immediately preceding the effective date of the new range.
- (2) If the current salary of the employee is greater than the maximum salary for the new class, the unit member shall be paid at his/er current salary. Such salary, plus any cost of living adjustments granted the employee, will be maintained until such time as

the highest step (presently Step 9) in the new range exceeds the employee's salary.

# (b) Salary to be Paid When Step Assignment Determined

- (1) If the current salary of the employee is less than the salary of the step to which the unit member was assigned, then the employee's salary shall be increased on the salary of the step to which the unit member was assigned.
- (2) If the current salary of the employee is greater than the salary of the step to which the unit member was assigned, the "Y" rate principle shall apply, and the unit member's salary shall remain unchanged as provided for in Section 6.3.6.

In any case, the incumbent shall retain the same anniversary date.

# e) Salary placement for new employees

New employees shall be placed in the salary range associated with their Classification with credit given for directly related full-time paid experience as follows:

0-23 months	Step 1
24-47 months	Step 2
48-71 months	Step 3
72-95 months	Step 4
96-119 months	Step 5
120 months or more	Step 6

A new employee may be placed on Step 7 due to extraordinary circumstances if approved by both the Area Vice President and the Vice President, Human Resources.

# 6.4 Career Increments for Classified Personnel

#### 6.4.1 10 Years

A unit member who is employed not less than four (4) hours a day, five (5) days a week, and who has served in the employ of the Santa Barbara Community College District for ten (10) years shall be granted a career increment of 5% of the basic salary per month to which the unit member is entitled in the unit member's respective position, time assignment, and salary schedule classification established by the Board of Trustees.

#### 6.4.2 15 Years

A unit member who is employed not less than four (4) hours a day, five (5) days a week, and who has served in the employ of the Santa Barbara Community College District for fifteen (15) years shall be granted a career increment of 10% of the basic salary per month to which the unit member is entitled in the unit member's respective position, time assignment, and salary schedule classification established by the Board of Trustees.

#### 6.4.3 20 Years

A unit member who is employed not less than four (4) hours a day, five (5) days a week, and who has served in the employ of the Santa Barbara Community College District for twenty (20) years shall be granted a career increment of 15% of the basic salary per month to which the unit member is entitled in the unit member's respective position, time assignment, and salary schedule classification established by the Board of Trustees.

- 6.4.4 In determining eligibility for such career increments, the following leaves do not constitute a break in service:
  - a. Time spent on earned vacation, sick leave, bereavement leave, and industrial accident or illness leave for which salary benefits are provided by the District, and on military leave.
  - b. Authorized absences without salary for a period of thirty (30) calendar days or less.
- 6.4.5 In determining eligibility for such career increments, authorized absences without salary in excess of thirty (30) calendar days do constitute a break in service.
- 6.4.6 The service applicable toward career increment eligibility shall commence on the employment date as specified in Section 6.3.2.

# 6.5 Employee Expenses and Materials

#### 6.5.1 Uniforms

The District shall pay the cost of the purchase, lease, rental, cleaning and maintenance of uniforms, lab coats, equipment, identification badges, emblems, and cards required by the District to be worn or used by Bargaining Unit Employees in the following classes: Custodial, Grounds, Food Service, Maintenance, Security, Warehouse; Lab Teaching Assistants/Lab Technicians.

# 6.5.2 Safety Equipment

Should the District require use of any equipment or gear to insure the safety of the employee or others, the District agrees to furnish such equipment or gear, or to reimburse the employee for the full cost of procuring such.

# 6.6 Physical Examinations

The District agrees to provide the cost of any medical examination requested by the District.

#### 6.7 Professional Growth

#### 6.7.1 Professional Growth Increments

Professional Growth will consist of eight steps to be earned in increments of \$250 each as described in the Professional Growth Manual. Twelve (12) Professional Growth Units are required to earn an increment.

# 6.7.2 Evaluation of Professional Growth Credits for CSEA Unit Members

Applications for Professional Growth Credits will be evaluated by CSEA and Human Resources designees appointed by the Vice President of Human Resources and designees appointed by CSEA.

Human Resources shall continue to have oversight of the Professional Growth Program for CSEA unit members including but not limited to the distribution of forms and initiation of this process during the fall and spring semesters as specified in the Professional Growth Program.

# 6.7.3 Professional Growth Option

Current unit members may enroll in noncredit tuition-free career skills classes with the permission of their supervisors.

# **Article 7:** HOURS

# 7.1 Regular Schedule

The regular work week of a full-time unit member normally is forty (40) hours Monday through Friday, and the regular work day shall be eight (8) hours. The scheduling of the hours and the work week, however, shall be at the sole discretion of the District management.

#### 7.1.1 Alternate Work Schedules

# a. Flexible Work Schedule

Subject to approval by the unit member's immediate supervisor, a unit member may work a flexible work schedule. A flexible work schedule means up to an eight (8) hour workday in which the unit member may vary their starting and ending time. The supervisor may, subject to two weeks notice, terminate a unit member's flexible work schedule. The termination of a flexible work schedule shall not be for arbitrary and/or capricious reasons. Under no circumstances may a flexible schedule exceed eight hours per day or 40 hours per week. All flexible schedules must be requested on the Request for Alternative Workweek Schedule Change Form (Appendix H) and submitted to the Vice President, Human Resources for compliance.

# b. Compressed Work Schedules

The District and unit member may mutually agree to a compressed work schedule, in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) or Education Code 88040, to establish either an:

- 4/10 (four-day, ten-hour per day workweek)
- 9/80 (eight nine-hour days and one eight-hour day over a two week period)

All compressed schedules must be requested on the Alternative Workweek Schedule Change Form (Appendix H) and submitted to the Vice President, Human Resources for compliance.

Time off must be reported in hourly increments (i.e., 9/80 must report 9 hours for full day off work).

If a holiday falls on a day for which the unit member is not scheduled to work as a result of the compressed schedule, the District shall provide a substitute holiday for such unit member, within the same pay period, or provide compensation in the amount to which the unit member would have been entitled had the holiday fallen within the unit member's normal work schedule. If the unit member is on a compressed schedule,

the number of hours scheduled to work per day equals the number of hours granted for the holiday.

# 7.2 Overtime

Notwithstanding circumstances pursuant to Article 2 - District Rights, overtime is voluntary. The District will provide overtime compensation or compensatory time off at a rate equal to one and one-half (1 1/2) times the regular rate of pay for unit members designated by the District and authorized to perform such overtime and certified by the immediate supervisor on the Compensatory Time/Overtime form (Appendix I) and submitted to payroll for payment. Overtime is any time required, suffered or permitted, to be worked in excess of eight (8) hours in any work day or any time in excess of forty (40) hours in any calendar week. This provision does not apply to unit members whose regular work day is less than eight (8) hours or whose work week is less than forty (40) hours. For the purpose of computing the number of hours worked, time during which the unit member is excused from work because of holidays, sick leave, vacation, compensated time off, or other paid leave of absence, shall be considered as time worked by the unit member.

The District shall make a reasonable attempt to insure that overtime is rotated among unit members.

- 7.2.1 Notwithstanding Sections 7.1 and 7.2 of this Article, the workweek for any unit member having an average work day of four (4) hours or more during the workweek shall consist of no more than five (5) consecutive working days. Such a unit member shall be compensated for any work required, suffered or permitted, to be performed on the sixth (6th) and seventh (7th) day following the commencement of the workweek at a rate equal to one and one- half (1 1/2) times the regular rate of pay of the unit member designated by the District and authorized to perform the work.
- 7.2.2 In the event a unit member who regularly works less than eight (8) hours a day and forty (40) hours a calendar week is designated and authorized to work in excess of the number of hours a day or week for which the unit member is customarily employed, and such additional hours of work, together with the customary hours of work, do not exceed eight (8) hours a day, the unit member shall be compensated for such additional hours at the unit member's regular rate of pay on a -for-one basis. Overtime service in excess of eight (8) hours a day shall be compensated at the overtime rates specified for full-time unit members. Such a unit member shall be compensated for any work required, suffered or permitted, to be performed on the sixth (6th) and seventh (7th) day following the commencement of the workweek at a rate equal to one and one-half (1 1/2) times the regular rate of pay of the unit member designated by the District and authorized to perform the work.

# 7.2.3 Overtime/Compensatory Time Allocation Method

Overtime work shall be compensated as determined by the supervisor prior to the rendering of overtime services as follows:

- a. Either cash compensation at the rate of one and one-half (1 1/2) times the regular rate of pay of the unit member designated and authorized to perform the overtime work; or
- b. Compensatory time off at the rate of one and one-half (1 1/2) times the number of hours of authorized overtime work; or
- c. A combination of cash compensation and compensatory time off as arranged in accordance with terms set forth in this policy;

# 7.2.4 Compensatory Time

Compensatory time shall be mutually agreed upon and certified by the immediate supervisor on the Compensatory Time/Overtime request form (Appendix H) and submitted to payroll for entry into the District's time and attendance system. Compensatory time off shall be granted and taken within the fiscal year in which compensatory time was earned and at such times as arranged that will not impair the services rendered by the District and office to which the unit member is assigned. Absences charged to compensatory time shall be entered into the District's time and attendance system.

- a. Overtime may be compensated with one and one-half (1 1/2) compensatory time credits in lieu of cash payments up to a maximum of 240 compensatory time hours (160 hours straight time equals 240 hours compensatory time).
- b. Earned compensatory time shall be taken in units of one-half (1/2) hour or more at times approved by the immediate supervisor.
- c. Compensatory time must be taken within the fiscal year it is earned. Any outstanding compensatory time shall be paid out as of June 30<sup>th</sup>, and will receive an end-of year payout as part of the July 31 payroll.

# 7.3 Meal Periods and Rest Breaks

The intent of this section is to ensure that unit members take their meal periods and rest breaks.

#### a. Meal Periods

Unit members who work six (6) hours or more shall take a non-paid duty-free lunch period of not less than thirty (30) minutes per day.

Unit members may extend a lunch period to 45 minutes provided that the length of the work day is not shortened. The supervisor shall determine when the time shall be made up for that day.

Unit members may extend a lunch period to 60 minutes subject to supervisor approval provided that the length of the work day is not shortened. The supervisor shall determine when the time shall be made up for that day.

A meal break shall not be combined with a rest break.

b. Rest Breaks. Unit members shall take a rest period of fifteen (15) minutes for every four (4) hours of work. Unit members cannot combine rest breaks.

# 7.4 Call Backs

Any unit member called in or called back to work after completion of the unit member's regular assignment shall be compensated for at least two (2) hours of work at the rate of one and one-half (1 1/2) times the unit member's regular rate of pay (cash compensation or compensatory time off).

# 7.5 Telecommuting

Telecommuting shall be certified by the immediate supervisor on the Telecommuting Agreement form (Appendix E) and submitted to Human Resources for compliance. The approval and conditions under which such requests will be granted are subject to the District's sole discretion, provided that the working conditions are consistent with the terms of this Agreement, and the Telecommuting Guidelines (Appendix E). If the requested telecommuting would result in working conditions for unit members which are inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, the District shall notify CSEA and provide it with an opportunity to negotiate regarding any changes to the working conditions, to the extent such changes are within the scope of representation.

#### 7.6 Workweek

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Governing Board of the District may establish a ten-hour per day, forty-hour four consecutive-days workweek in accordance with Education Code Section 88040 as amended.

# **Article 8: HOLIDAYS**

- 8.1 Except as otherwise provided, all unit members shall be entitled to the following paid holidays provided they were in a paid status during any portion of the working day immediately preceding or succeeding the holiday. Payment to eligible part-time unit members for such holidays shall be appropriately pro-rated in the proportion that the actual time worked excluding overtime, bears to time served in a full-time position.
  - 8.1.1 Holidays specified by Education Code: January 1, third Monday in January (Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day), February 12 (Lincoln Day), third Monday in February (Washington Day), last Monday in May (Memorial Day), July 4, first Monday in September (Labor Day), November 11 (Veteran's Day), Thanksgiving Day, December 24, December 25, and every day appointed by the President of the United States or the Governor for a public fast, thanksgiving, or holiday as specified in the Education Code.

When such a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be deemed to be a holiday in lieu of the day observed. When such a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be deemed to be the holiday in lieu of the day observed.

When the District requires a unit member to work a workweek other than Monday through Friday, or if such unit member consents to a workweek including Saturday or Sunday or both, and as a result thereof the unit member loses a holiday to which the unit member would otherwise be entitled, the District shall provide a substitute holiday for such unit member, or provide compensation in the amount to which the unit member would have been entitled had the holiday fallen within his or her normal work schedule.

8.1.2 Holidays specified by the Board of Trustees for unit members:

Friday following Thanksgiving, four (4) consecutive working days between Christmas Day and New Year's Day; and every other day which the Board specifies as a holiday for unit members.

- 8.2 Regularly employed unit members who are not normally assigned to duty during the winter vacation period encompassing December 25 and January 1 shall be paid on an appropriate pro-rated basis for these two holidays provided they were in a paid status during any portion of the working day of the unit member's normal assignment immediately preceding or succeeding the holiday period.
- 8.3 Paid status is defined as including time worked and time during which any unit member is excused from work but paid because of holidays, sick leave, vacation, compensatory time off, or other paid leave of absence.
- 8.4 Prior to July 1 of any school year, the Board of Trustees may designate other days during each such year as the holidays to which unit members shall be entitled in lieu of holidays on February 12, third Monday in February, last Monday in May, November 11, provided that such designated in-lieu days shall provide for at least a three-day weekend.

- 8.5 Except as otherwise provided, whenever a unit member is required to work on a specified holiday, the unit member shall be paid compensation or given compensating time off (at the employee's option) for such work at a rate equal to time and one-half in addition to the regular pay received for the holiday.
- 8.6 Unit members who are assigned for work exclusively on weekends and holidays and who are paid at a special salary rate that recognizes the exclusive weekend and holiday peculiarity, shall be exempted from the provisions of overtime and holiday compensation and shall be paid for such weekend and holiday work at a special salary rate prescribed by the Board of Trustees.

#### 8.7 Academic Calendar

During the fall semester of each year, the Dean of Educational Programs (Admissions and Records) shall send copies to the CSEA President when calendar options are being developed. The CSEA's views, preferences or potential impact on classified unit members regarding the developed calendar options will be sent to the Executive Vice President, Educational Programs by the President of the CSEA in writing within 20 working days of receipt.

CSEA shall be informed by the Dean of the Academic Senate's selection of an option. Provided that CSEA has presented unit member's views, preferences or potential impact on classified unit members to the Executive Vice President, Educational Programs and if CSEA is not then satisfied with the selected option, it may request that the District shall negotiate the impact of the selected college calendar upon the terms and conditions of the CSEA Agreement.

# **Article 9: VACATION**

- 9.1 For the purpose of this section, "continuous service" shall mean employment for ten (10) or more calendar months of each school year.
- 9.2 A new unit member shall not be eligible to take more than six (6) days, or the proportionate amount to which the unit member may be entitled, until the first day of the calendar month after completion of six (6) months of continuous service with the Santa Barbara Community College District. Under certain circumstances and only upon written approval of the Human Resources Department, a vacation may be granted to a probationary unit member during the unit member's first six (6) months. The scheduling of all vacations shall be within the sole discretion of the District. Each regular full-time unit member shall be entitled to vacation leave with pay, subject to the following provisions:
  - 9.2.1 From the employment date of full-time service, unit members earn eight (8) hours of credit for each calendar month, of employment.
  - 9.2.2 After the completion of the second (2nd) year of full-time continuous service, unit members shall earn ten (10) hours days of credit for each calendar month, of employment.
  - 9.2.3 After the completion of the seventh (7th) year of full-time continuous service, unit members shall earn twelve (12) hours of credit for each calendar month, of employment.
  - 9.2.4 After the completion of twelve (12) years of full-time continuous service, unit members shall earn 13.34 hours of credit for each calendar month, of employment.
  - 9.2.5 After completion of the eighteenth (18th) year of full-time continuous service, unit members shall earn 14.67 hours credit for each calendar month, of employment.
  - 9.2.6 After completion of the twenty-third (23rd) year of full-time continuous service, unit members shall earn 16.67 hours of credit for each calendar month, of employment.
- 9.3 It is the intent of this section that unit member's take their annual vacation. However, vacation credit may be accumulated to a total, as of June 30<sup>th</sup> each fiscal year, not exceeding that which the unit member could earn in twenty-four (24) months.

Unit members, over their twenty-four (24) month accumulation as of June 30 of the year, shall receive an end-of-year payout as part of the July 31 payroll. Receiving an end-of-year payout will be documented on the unit member's classified evaluation form and may have a negative impact on the overall score of the evaluation.

- 9.4 Whenever a vacation period includes any declared holidays (other than Saturdays and Sundays), it shall be extended by a number of days equal to said included holidays.
- 9.5 All unit members rendering less than full-time service shall be entitled to a pro-rated portion of vacation credits computed on a ratio that the hours, days, or months worked in relation to full-time service.
- 9.6 Upon separation from employment, unit members who have not completed six (6) months employment in probationary status shall not be entitled to payment of accrued vacation, as they are not yet vested in this accrual. Permanent unit members who separate from employment will receive unused, accrued vacation at the rate of pay earned at the time of separation.
- 9.7 Vacations must be scheduled in advance and must be taken at times convenient to the department to which the unit member is assigned. Requests for vacation must be made in writing and approved by the immediate supervisor. Supervisors shall approve or deny any unit member's request for vacation within five (5) working days upon receipt of the request. Lack of response by the supervisor within the five (5) working days is a presumption of approval. Once a written vacation request has been approved by the Supervisor, the scheduled vacation time can not be changed or canceled, by either the Supervisor or unit member, except by mutual agreement.

When two or more unit members' requests are for vacations in the same time period, the unit member with the greater seniority shall be granted the unit member's request. If the unit member's involved have equal seniority, then priority shall be established by lot.

# 9.8 Illness and Bereavement While on Vacation

Any permanent unit member who commences their prescribed vacation period and subsequently becomes ill or is bereaved before their vacation period has been completed shall be placed on sick leave or bereavement leave, as appropriate, under the following conditions:

- 9.8.1 If the illness or bereavement is for three (3) consecutive days, or more; and
- 9.8.2 If the illness or bereavement is such that had the unit member been working, theywould have been absent on sick or bereavement leave; and
- 9.8.3 If the request is filed with the Human Resources Department within two (2) weeks of the illness or bereavement or within, at the latest, one (1) week of the unit member's return to duty unless extraordinary, extenuating circumstances exist which prevent such filing; and,

9.8.4 If the filed request fully outlines the reasons for the request and is fully substantiated to include medical reports in the case of illness.

When all or part of a unit member's vacation is to be converted to illness or bereavement leave, the appropriate vacation credit shall be restored to the unit member's earned vacation balance. If possible, the unit member shall be granted opportunity to use this vacation credit in order not to exceed the limit on accrued vacation, as defined in Section 9.3.

# **Article 10: TRANSFER AND DEMOTION**

- Transfers of bargaining unit members may be initiated by the District management or requested by the bargaining unit employee at any time. A unit member affected by such transfer shall be given forty-eight (48) hours notice prior to the effective date of the transfer. A conference will be held between the appropriate management person and the unit member in order to discuss the transfer.
- For the purpose of this section, a "transfer" shall mean the reassignment of a unit member from one position to another position in the same class or to a position in a similar or related class with the same salary range. (See Section 6.3.9c., Salary on Transfer.)
- A permanent unit member may request voluntary demotion to a class with a lower maximum salary rate. Such requests require the approval of the immediate supervisor, the department head, and that of the head of the department to which the unit member is to be assigned. (See Section 6.3.9b., Salary on Demotion.)
- A unit member desiring a transfer shall file a written request with the Human Resources Department. The Human Resources Department shall retain the employee's request for transfer for one (1) calendar year. Unless the transfer request is renewed by the unit member, it shall be removed from the transfer file.
- When a new position is created or an existing position becomes vacant, the District shall, prior to advertising the position, consider those bargaining unit employees serving in the District who have a transfer request on file, provided that the unit employee meets the established qualifications for the vacant position. The final selection is within the sole discretion of the District management.
- Transfers shall not change the employee's salary rate, anniversary date, or accumulated benefits. However, if the employee is transferred to another class, the unit member seniority in that class shall begin on the date of the transfer.
- Involuntary transfers shall be discussed with the employee by the unit members supervisor and the Vice President, Human Resources.

# **Article 11: PROMOTIONS**

# Permanent Employee Preference

All persons involved in the screening, interviewing and selection process are encouraged to give preference to permanent classified service employees of the District, provided that education, experience, knowledge, and abilities of such employees are equal to those of non-District applicants.

# **Article 12: PROBATIONARY PERIOD**

#### 12.1 Duration of Probation

All original and promotional appointments in the classified service shall be subject to the serving of a probationary period, which shall be considered a part of the examining process.

# 12.2 Length of Probationary Period

The probationary period for new employees shall be twelve (12) months of service in paid status in the position to which assigned and six (6) months for promotional appointments. In the case of promotion the unit member's anniversary date shall be changed to the date of completion of the probationary period.

A permanent employee in the classified service who vacated the unit member's position to accept a probationary promotion to a class in a higher level and who is rejected during the probationary period shall be reinstated to the unit member's former class of position unless the reasons for which s/he was terminated from the promotional position were such as to constitute cause for dismissal. Any permanent employee who is displaced as a result of this policy shall have displacement rights as provided for in the Article 14 Layoffs, Section 14.2.9, Displacement Rights.

An employee who is promoted during the unit member's probationary period shall serve a new probationary period of six (6) months or the remainder of the original twelve (12) month probationary period, whichever is longer.

# 12.3 Not Subject to Grievance Procedure

Article 12 is not subject to the grievance procedure.

# **Article 13: SAFETY**

# 13.1 Safety Considerations

The District shall be responsible for providing safe working conditions for unit members and for prescribing appropriate safety standards. The District shall meet the safety and health standards mandated by the California Occupational Safety and Health Act. Unit members shall be responsible for complying with applicable safety standards, including completing accident and safety reports, and for practicing basic safety measures. Unit members shall report to their immediate supervisor, preferably in writing, suspected unsafe conditions. The District shall investigate all reports of suspected unsafe conditions, and shall take necessary steps to correct unsafe conditions. All written reports submitted to the District shall be responded to within a reasonable time. The intent of this section is to provide timely resolution of safety concerns. CSEA will encourage employees to maintain safe working conditions and to improve the cleanliness of all departments, machinery, equipment, and facilities used by the employees so that the safety of all individuals may be assured.

The District shall have a District standing committee (Facilities & Safety Committee) that deals with safety/security issues to promote and encourage safety awareness and accident prevention through the exchange of information with District employees. Facilities & Safety (F&S) Committee: Three (3) voting members *and* one (1) voting member from Facilities & Operations staff from satellite campuses.. Employees may report any real or potential unsafe conditions to their representative on this committee.

#### Article 14 LAYOFFS

#### General

Layoffs in the classified service may be effected for lack of work or lack of funds. Normally such layoffs will be effected at the end of a fiscal year. An employee subject to layoff will be given at least sixty (60) days notice before the layoff will be effective.

#### 14.1 Order of Layoff

14.1.1 Whenever a unit member is laid off, the order of layoff within the class shall be determined by length of service. The unit member who has been employed the shortest time in the class where layoffs are required, plus higher classes, shall be laid off first.

For purposes of this section, "length of service" shall be determined by the date a unit member first entered into probationary status in the classified service of the District. Seniority in a particular class shall be determined by the hire date in that class. "Length of service" shall include all service in paid status and military leave of absence.

#### 14.1.2 Time in the Class

- a. An employee who is changed from one job classification to another (due to promotion, reassignment, reclassification) shall have the unit member's seniority in the new class begin on the date of the change in classification.
- b. Exceptions to this are where only the title has been changed, former classification has been eliminated, and in cases of demotion. In these cases, the employee's seniority shall be computed from the date of the unit member's earliest entrance into the former classification.
- c. For purposes of this Agreement seniority for employees who have been reclassified as a result of the implementation of the 2005 Ewing Study shall be treated in the same manner as set forth in subsection (b) above.

# 14.2 Rights of Employees Upon Layoff

- 14.2.1 A re-employment list for each class subjected to layoffs will be established and maintained for at least 39 months or until exhausted, whichever is sooner.
- The names of employees who are laid off will be placed on the re-employment list in accordance with length of service in the class, plus higher classes, and they shall be re-employed in

accordance therewith as vacancies occur in the class for which the list has been established.

- 14.2.3 Persons on a layoff re-employment list will be re-employed over all other candidates for the position vacancy except for re-employment list established in accordance with the provisions of Education Code Sections 88192 and 88195 when those lists were established after the layoff was effected.
- When re-employment lists are in effect in accordance with Education Code Sections 88192 and/or 88195 and persons thereon have served in the class effecting layoffs, they will be placed on the layoff re-employment list according to seniority if they would have been laid off had they been in active service.
- 14.2.5 Offer of Re-employment. When a vacancy occurs in a class for which layoff reemployment list has been established, the senior employee will be notified in writing at the last known address given the District by the employee and given an opportunity to accept the vacancy. The laid-off employee may decline the offer of employment and retain the unit member's position on the list. If the unit member twice declines an appointment, the unit member's name will be removed from the list and the unit member forfeits all rights to which the unit member would otherwise be entitled.
- An employee required to be laid off may be assigned to a a position vacancy in another class for which the unit member is qualified. Such assignment will not be made on previous length of service, but if so assigned, salary schedule placement will be made on the basis of prior service. In the event of future layoffs within the new class of assignment, length of service for layoff purposes will be counted only from the time of assignment to the position.

Assignment to a position vacancy in another class under this rule, in no manner voids the employee's layoff rights under other subsections.

- 14.2.7 Rights Upon Re-employment. A person re-employed from a layoff list will, upon resumption of the unit member's duties, be fully restored as a permanent employee and the break in service will be disregarded.
- 14.2.8 Acceptance of Substitute or Short-Term Employment. An employee who has been laid off for lack of work or lack of funds and who is on a layoff re-employment list may be re-employed as a substitute or short-term employee (as that latter term is defined in Education Code 88003) in any class for which qualified and such employment shall in no manner jeopardize or otherwise affect the unit member's status or eligibility for re-employment.

The District will attempt to provide substitute or short-term employment to those on a re-employment list in accordance with their relative seniority but are not bound by seniority.

- 14.2.9 Displacement Rights.
  - a. An employee in the classified service who is laid off from a class and who has previous service in an equal or lower class shall have the right to displace an employee with less seniority in that class. Seniority shall include the total of the previous service in the equal or lower class plus service in the class from which layoff occurs and in higher classes.
  - b. A classified employee who is displaced by an employee with greater seniority shall have displacement rights as though the unit member had been laid off for lack of work or lack of funds.
- 14.2.10 Seniority Roster. The District shall maintain a seniority roster indicating employees' class seniority. Such rosters shall be available to CSEA upon request.
- 14.2.11 Any reduction in regularly assigned hours shall be considered a layoff under the provisions of this Article.
- 14.2.12 Equal Seniority. If two (2) or more employees subject to layoff have equal class seniority, the determination as to who shall be laid off will be made on the basis of the greater bargaining unit seniority or, if that be equal, the greater hire date seniority, and if that be equal, then the determination shall be made by lot.
- 14.2.13 Notwithstanding the foregoing, CSEA retains the right to bargain further effects of layoff and/or reduction of hours on a case-by-case basis. Such right to bargain, however, will not delay the implementation of the layoff/reduction of hours.

#### **Article 15: EVALUATIONS**

- All unit members shall be evaluated by the unit member's immediate supervisors in accordance with the following schedule:
  - 15.1.1 Probationary unit members shall be evaluated the beginning of the fourth (4th), eighth (8th), and the eleventh (11th) month of service. After attaining permanency, evaluations will comply with 15.1.2 regardless of permanency date.
  - 15.1.2 Permanent unit members shall be evaluated at least annually:
    - a. The annual evaluation period shall be July 1 through June 30 of the previous year.
    - b. Annual evaluations for the previous year are to be completed between July 1 and September 30 of each year.
    - c. Annual evaluations for the previous year are due to Human Resources no later September 30 of each year.
    - d. A special evaluation may be administered if applicable to assess performance.
  - 15.1.3 Promotions at least at the beginning of the fourth (4th) and sixth (6th) month of service.
- 15.2. The evaluation shall indicate whether the unit member has achieved the standard of work performance required. The evaluation shall include a discussion between the unit member and the unit member's the unit member's immediate supervisor regarding the employee's performance during the evaluation period, professional development, and progress toward goals, if any, established at the previous evaluation meeting or as of initial employment. The evaluation shall be completed on the form developed by CSEA and the District, District Classified Evaluation Form (Appendix C).
- Each unit member shall be given a copy of the completed evaluation form prepared by the unit member's the unit member's supervisor regarding the unit member's progress, at the time the evaluation is administered. Copies of the completed evaluation shall be available to the area Vice President. The completed evaluation shall be forwarded in a timely manner to Human Resources.
- The employee shall have the right to review and respond to any evaluation prepared pursuant hereto.
- The signature of the unit member on the evaluation form is not construed as agreement with the contents of the evaluation.

#### **Article 16: LEAVE PROVISIONS**

The benefits which are expressly provided by this Article, are the sole benefits which are part of this collective Agreement, and it is agreed that other statutory or regulatory leave benefits are not incorporated, either directly or implied, into this Agreement, nor are such other benefits subject to the grievance procedure, Article 3.

#### 16.1 Sick Leave

- 16.1.1 Sick leave is the authorized absence of a unit member because of personal illness or injury or exposure to contagious disease.
- 16.1.2 Full-time unit members shall accrue sick leave for personal illness or injury at the rate of one (1) day for each calendar month of service or major fraction thereof during the fiscal year.
- 16.1.3 For unit members, "immediate family" means mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, grandmother or grandfather of the unit member or the spouse or domestic partner of the unit member, spouse, domestic partner, grandchild, son, son-in-law, daughter, daughter-in-law, stepson, stepdaughter, step-parents, brother, brother-in-law, sister, or sister-in-law of the unit member, and any other relative living in the immediate household of the unit member. All step, half, adopted, foster "immediate family" members are included.
- Unit members serving less than a fiscal year or on less than a full-time basis shall accrue sick leave in proportion that the time worked bears to a fiscal year of full-time service.
- 16.1.5 A new unit member of the District shall not be eligible to take more than six (6) days, or the proportionate amount to which the unit member may be entitled under Education Code Section 88191 or 88196, until the first day of the calendar month after completion of six (6) months of active service with the District.
- 16.1.6 Unused sick leave provided above shall be accumulated from year to year with no cumulative limit.
- 16.1.7 Legal holidays, Saturdays, and Sundays shall not be counted as any part of said sick leave unless the unit member is obligated to work on such days.
- Whenever a unit member is absent because of illness or injury, the unit member shall submit their absence information in the assigned system to the unit member's supervisor.

Additionally, whenever the unit member is absent for more than five (5) consecutive working days, the unit member must submit to the Human Resources Department verification by the unit member's medical authority, in order to establish the validity of such medical absence of more than five (5) consecutive working days. Such verification from the medical authority shall include either (1) a

statement concerning the unit member's illness or injury (using the District's Medical Verification for Leave/Return to Work form) or the District's Medical Verification for Extended Leave/Return to Work Certification forms as appropriate) which resulted in an absence of more than five (5) consecutive working days. The Superintendent may require that the District select one or more physicians at District expense to verify the frequent recurrence of the same illness or injury. Such verification will include a statement covering either the unit member's need for intermittent absence from work due to illness or injury or the degree of duty the unit member can assume within the unit member's assigned duties in the District. Under no circumstances may sick leave be used in lieu of, in addition to, or as vacation, except as provided in Section 16.3 of this Agreement.

- 16.1.9 Termination of a unit member's employment or service shall abrogate all sick leave accrued to the time of such termination. However, if such person subsequently re-enters employment or service within 39 months from the date of separation as provided in these policies, all benefits shall be restored.
- 16.1.10 Upon written request a new unit member who has been employed in a California public school district within one (1) year of the time the unit member is employed by the Santa Barbara Community College District shall have any unused sick leave remaining from said former district transferred to the unit member's sick leave account in the Santa Barbara Community College District.
- 16.1.11 Upon separation from the District no remuneration will be paid for unused sick leave. Upon separation from the District, any absence due to illness or injury beyond authorized sick leave shall be deducted from the final warrant of the unit member.

#### 16.2 Use of AB109 Sick Leave for Family Members

- 16.2.1 Employees may use sick leave to attend to the illness of a child, parent, spouse or domestic partner in addition to using sick leave for their own personal illness.
- The amount of sick leave that any employee earns in a year will remain the same.
- As defined by AB 109, "children and parents" are defined as biological, foster, adoptive, and step relatives. The term "child" also includes a legal ward, or a child of a person standing in *loco parentis*. The term "parent" also includes a legal guardian.
- All conditions and restrictions placed by the employer upon the use of sick leave also shall apply to the use by an employee of sick leave

to attend to an illness of the employee or the employee's child, parent or spouse. This includes but is not limited to the requirement that absence for illness of more than five days requires written verification. This same requirement would apply to the use of sick leave to attend the illness of a child, spouse or parent.

AB 109 does not extend the maximum period of leave to which an employee is entitled under the state and federal family medical leave statutes. This period, generally, is three months and is unpaid leave. This unpaid leave would be used following exhaustion of accrued sick leave.

## 16.3 Personal Necessity

In addition to other leaves, unit members may use a maximum of ten (10) sick leave days as provided in Education Code Section 88191 in any fiscal year (at the unit member's election) in case of personal necessity for any of the following:

- 16.3.1 Death of a member of the unit member's immediate family, as defined in Section 16.1.3, when additional leave is required beyond that provided under bereavement leave.
- 16.3.2 Accident involving the unit member's person or property, or person or property of a member of the unit member's immediate family.
- 16.3.3 Appearance in any court or before any administrative tribunal as a litigant, party, or witness under subpoena or any order made with jurisdiction.
- 16.3.4 Any unexpected event involving damage or injury to personal property which has crucial significance for the unit member and the unit member's immediate family. The aftermath of fire, flood, falling objects, and burglary are examples. Such circumstances shall be reported by the unit member to the unit member's immediate supervisor without delay so that verification to the Payroll Department will occur within the next payroll period.
- 16.3.5 Death of a close personal friend or a member of the unit member's family not defined as "immediate member of the family."
- 16.3.6 Personal business that cannot reasonably be expected to beconducted outside of regular working hours.
- 16.3.7 Illness f a member of the unit member's immediate family.
- 16.4 Industrial Accident and Industrial Illness Leave
  - 16.4.1 Leaves resulting from industrial accident or industrial illness

- shall be granted to unit members and used in lieu of entitlement granted under Section 16.1 of this Agreement, in accordance with the provisions of Education Code Section 88192.
- 16.4.2 A permanent unit member who has been employed for a period of at least one year shall be granted a leave of absence with pay when the unit member is absent due to an industrial accident or illness which arose out of and in the course of employment by the Santa Barbara Community College District in accordance with the following regulations:
  - a. Any unit member who receives temporary disability benefits under Worker's Compensation laws of this state shall not be entitled to receive wages or salary from the Santa Barbara Community College District which, when added to the temporary disability benefits, will exceed a full day's wages or salary.
  - b. During periods of temporary disability so long as the unit member has available for the unit member's use sick leave, compensating time off, or other paid leave of absence, the unit member shall be required to endorse the unit member's temporary disability checks payable to the Santa Barbara Community College District.
  - c. When sick leave, vacation leave, compensating time off, or other available paid leave is used in conjunction with temporary disability benefits derived from Worker's Compensation, the unit member's salary shall be reduced only in the amount necessary to provide a full day's wage or salary when added to the temporary disability benefits of unit members.
  - d. The accident must have been reported and verified according to administration regulations and must be accepted by the District's Worker's Compensation Insurance carrier as a bonafide injury arising out of and in the course of employment.
  - e. Such leaves shall be for a maximum of sixty (60) working days in any one fiscal year for the same accident or illness. In the event that the sixty (60) days will overlap into the next fiscal year, the unit member shall be entitled only to those days remaining in the end of the fiscal year in which the accident or illness occurred.
  - f. After a unit member utilizing industrial accident leave is released to return to work, any continued use of the leave (e.g. follow up medical exams, authorized treatments), should, when practicable, be scheduled to occur outside of the unit member's assigned work hours, but shall be allowed upon appropriate notice to the appropriate supervisor.
  - g. Such leave shall not be cumulative from year to year.

- h. Leave benefits shall not be applied retroactively to any injury or illness occurring prior to initiation of service with the District.
- i. During all paid leaves of absence required as a result of industrial accident leave, sick leave, vacation, or other paid leave, the unit member shall endorse to the Santa Barbara Community College District wage loss benefit checks received under State Worker's Compensation laws. The Santa Barbara Community College District, in turn, shall issue the unit member appropriate forms for full payment of salary and shall make normal payroll deductions.
- j. After allowable industrial accident or illness leave is exhausted, accumulative sick leave, approved compensatory time due, and/or allowable vacation time may be applied against the unit member's continuing absence for the same injury, and the unit member shall continue to endorse the unit member's District's Worker's Compensation Insurance carrier's checks to the District. Also, the Board of Trustees may grant additional leave under the provisions of Education Code Section 88199.
- k. A unit member's industrial accident leave shall be suspended automatically for any period during which the unit member is not within the State unless the unit member has obtained prior approval of the Board of Trustees for absence from the State.
- 1. The leave shall commence on the first day of absence and the amount of allowable leave shall be reduced by one (1) day for each day of absence authorized by said leave.
- m. If the unit member is not medically able to resume the normal duties of the unit member's position at the expiration of all available leaves of absence, the unit member shall be placed on a re-employment list for a period of 39 months. If the unit member has medically recovered and is available during the 39-month period, the unit member shall be employed in any vacant position in the unit member's previous classification over all other candidates except those on a re-employment list established as a result of a layoff in which case the unit member shall be listed in accordance with appropriate seniority.
- n. Any unit member returning from such paid or unpaid leave of absence shall not have any loss or gain in status or benefits other than that which is specifically provided in applicable provisions of the Education Code. A unit member shall continue to receive seniority credit for all purposes while on such a paid or unpaid leave of absence.
- o. A unit member who fails to accept an appropriate

assignment after being medically approved therefore shall be removed from the re-employment list. Appropriate assignment is defined as an assignment to the unit member's former class, in the unit member's former status and time basis, and in assignment areas in which the unit member has made him/herself available. Unit members removed from a re-employment list under this rule may appeal the removal to the Superintendent.

p. The period of leave shall not be considered to be a breakin service of the unit member.

#### 16.5 Entitlement to Other Sick Leave

At the beginning of each fiscal year each permanent unit member shall be entitled to additional sick leave in an amount that when added to the unit member's accumulated sick leave as specified and referenced in Education Code Section 88196, shall not exceed 100 working days. Such days of paid sick leave in addition to those required by Education Code Section 88196 shall be compensated at the rate of fifty percent (50%) of the unit member's regular salary for absences for which the District has been provided appropriate verification as set forth in Article 16.1.8. The paid additional sick leave as herein authorized shall exclude with exception of accumulated sick leave all other paid leave, holidays, vacation, and compensating time, to which the unit member may be entitled. The paid additional 100 working days shall be credited whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of employment of the unit member.

#### 16.6 Bereavement Leave

- 16.6.1 Every unit member shall be granted necessary leave of absence not to exceed five (5) days on account of the death of any member of the unit member's immediate family.
- 16.6.2 No deduction shall be made from a salary of a unit member of the classified service granted a bereavement leave, nor shall such leave be deducted from any other leaves granted by other sections of these rules.
- 16.6.3 Additional bereavement leave, not to exceed six (6) days, may be allowed. If allowed by the Vice President of Human Resources, the days shall be deducted from the unit member's accumulated sick leave.
- 16.6.4 "Member of the immediate family" shall have the same definition as in Section 16.1.3.

#### 16.7 Jury Duty and Witness Leave

16.7.1 Leave of absence for jury service shall be granted to any unit member who has been officially summoned to jury duty in local, state, or federal court. Leave shall be granted for a period of jury service. The unit member shall receive full pay while on leave provided that the jury service fee for such leave is assigned to the District and the subpoena or court certification is filed with the

Human Resources Department. Request for jury service leave should be made by presenting the official court summons for jury service to the Human Resources Department or by other verification to the Human Resources Department.

Leave of absence to serve as a witness in a court case shall be granted to a unit member when the unit member has been served a subpoena to appear as a witness, not as a litigant, in the case. The length of the leave granted shall be for the number of days in attendance in court as certified by the clerk or other authorized officer of the court. The unit member shall receive full pay during the leave period, provided that the witness fee for such leave is assigned to the District and the subpoena or court certification is filed with the Human Resources Department. Request for leave of absence to serve as a witness should be made by presenting the official court summons to the Human Resourcess Department.

The jury service fee and witness fee referred to in the above do not include reimbursement for transportation expenses.

- 16.7.3 The unit member who has received leave of absence under this rule shall make him/herself available for work during normal hours when the unit member's presence is not required in court.
- Any day during which any employee in the bargaining unit whose regular shift commences at 4:00 P.M. or after and who is required to serve on a jury or appear in court as a witness shall be relieved from work, with pay, for the number of hours served.

#### 16.8 Maternity Leave

- Unit members are entitled to use personal illness leave as set forth in Section 16.1 for disabilities caused or contributed to by pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and recovery therefrom on the same terms and conditions governing leave of absence for other illness or medical disability. Such leave shall not be used for child care, child rearing, or preparation for child bearing, but shall be limited to those disabilities as set forth above. The length of such disability leave shall be determined by the unit member and the unit member's physician; however, the District management may require a verification of the extent of disability through a physical examination of the unit member by a physician appointed by the District.
- 16.8.2 Nothing in this section shall be construed so as to deprive any unit member of sick leave rights under other articles of this Agreement for absences due to illness or injury resulting from pregnancy.

#### 16.9 Miscellaneous Provisions

## 16.9.1 Military Leave

Military leave of absence shall be granted and compensated in accordance with state and federal law.

#### 16.9.2 Leaves of Absence Without Pay

- a. The Superintendent may authorize a leave of absence without pay for any permanent or probationary unit member for a period not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days. Leaves of absence without pay in excess of thirty (30) calendar days may be approved by the Board of Trustees.
- b. A leave of absence shall be granted only to a unit member who desires to return therefrom to the classified service and who, at the time the leave is granted, has a satisfactory service record.
- c. Leave of absence without pay may be granted to a unit member for any of the following reasons:
  - (1) To attend school or college or to be trained to improve the quality of the unit member's service;
  - (2) If temporarily incapacitated by illness;
  - (3) If the unit member is loaned to another governmental agency for the performance of the unit member's specific assignment;
  - (4) Or other authorized reasons.
- d. Authorized leave of absence without pay in excess of thirty (30) calendar days shall not be construed as a break in service. Rights accrued at the time the leave is granted shall be retained by the unit member. Vacation credits, sick leave credits, increases in salary, and other similar shall not accrue to a person granted such leave during the period of absence. A unit member returning from a leave of absence without pay shall receive the same step in the salary range the unit member received when the unit member began the unit member's leave of absence. Time spent on such leave without pay shall not count toward service for increases within the salary range, and the unit member's salary anniversary date shall be postponed one (1) calendar month for each month, or major fraction thereof, of leave taken.

#### 16.9.3 Additional Leaves for Non-industrial Accident or Illness

A permanent unit member who has exhausted all entitlement to sick leave, vacation leave, compensatory time off, or other available paid leave and who is absent because of non-industrial accident or illness may, with the recommendation of the Superintendent and approval of the Board of Trustees, be granted six (6) months' leave, paid or unpaid, as determined by the Board, not to exceed eighteen (18) months. Refer to Education Code Section 88195.

#### 16.9.4 Absence Without Leave

All unauthorized or unreported absences shall be considered as absence without leave, and a deduction of pay shall be made for each period of such absence. Such absence may be made the grounds for disciplinary action and will serve to interrupt continuous service. Absence without leave, voluntary or involuntary, for ten (10) consecutive working days is automatic resignation from the District.

# 16.9.5 Reporting of Absences

- a. Any unit member of the classified service who is absent from duty for any reason shall report the reason therefore to the unit member's supervisor immediately on the day of absence or before, if possible, and in any case, at the earliest practicable time.
- b. The Payroll Office records shall be considered the official District record for absences from work.

#### 16.10 Family Care Leave

To the extent not already provided for under current leave policies and provision the District will provide family and medical care leave for eligible employees as required by state and federal law. The following procedures set forth certain of the rights and obligations with respect to such leave. Rights and obligations which are not specifically set forth below are set forth in the Department of Labor regulations implementing the federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 ("FMLA"), and the regulations of the California Family Rights Act ("CFRA"). Unless otherwise provided by this policy, "leave" under this policy shall mean leave pursuant to the FMLA and CFRA.

#### 16.10.1 Terms of Leave

a. Family care and medical leave shall not exceed twelve (12) work weeks (or twenty-six (26) weeks to care for a covered service member) during any twelve (12) month period. Where FMLA leave qualifies as both military caregiver leave and care for a family member with a serious health condition, the leave will be designated as military caregiver leave first.

b. The twelve (12) month period for calculating leave entitlement will be a rolling 12-month period measured backward from the date leave is taken and continuous with each additional leave day taken.

#### 16.10.2 Intermittent/Reduced Work Schedule Leave

Leave related to the serous health conditions of the unit member or the unit member's child, parent, spouse, or domestic partner may be taken intermittently or on a reduced work schedule when medically necessary. In such a case, the District may limit leave increments to the shortest period of time that the payroll system uses to account for absences or use of leave.

If the leave is foreseeable based on planned medical treatment, the unit member may also be required to transfer temporarily to a different job that has the equivalent pay and benefits but could better accommodate recurring periods of leave. The unit member must be qualified for the position, but the position does not need to have equivalent duties. Transfer to an alternative position may include altering an existing job to better accommodate the unit member's need for intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule.

#### 16.10.3 Maintenance of Benefits

- a. Leave under the terms of FMLA and/or CFRA is unpaid. During the period of family care and medical leave, the unit member shall continue to be entitled to participate in the District's medical and dental plans. In accordance with the federal law, the District shall pay the unit member's regular health benefits contributions for up to twelve weeks during the 12-month period.
- b. If the unit member fails to return from leave after the leave period has expired for a reason other than the continuation, recurrence or onset of a serious health condition of the unit member or the unit member's family member which would entitle the unit member to leave, or because of circumstances beyond the unit member's control, the employee will be required to reimburse any health plan premiums paid by the District during the period of leave. The District shall have the right to recover premiums through deduction from any sums due to the employee from the District (eg., unpaid wages, vacation pay).
- c. The unit member shall also continue to be entitled to participate in pension and retirement plans and/or any other welfare benefit plan to the same extent and under the same conditions as apply to an unpaid leave taken for any other purpose. In the absence of these conditions, the unit member shall continue to be entitled to participate in these plans and the District may, at its discretion, require the unit member to pay the premium for periods not covered by accrued leave.

#### 16.11 Catastrophic Illness Leave Donation Program

- a. Purpose: The purpose of this program is to allow permanent bargaining contract unit employees to donate their accrued, unused sick leave to catastrophically ill or injured fellow employees (faculty, staff, or administrators) who have completely exhausted other paid leave benefits. The program is voluntary.
- b. Contributions: Effective January 1, 1999 any unit member may donate up to five (5) days of accumulated sick leave to another unit member who has suffered a long-term catastrophic illness or injury and has exhausted all other available paid leave. Donations must be for a minimum of one day (eight (8) hours). Donations are irrevocable; unused days are retained by donee. Terminating employees may donate up to 6 days.
  - (1) The donating employee must, after the donation, retain a minimum of two year's (24 days) worth of accrued, unused sick leave from prior accumulations.
  - (2) The donating employee shall execute and file with the Human Resources Department a form authorizing and irrevocably assigning the donated leave to the donee employee.
- c. Eligibility: Unit members shall be eligible to request the donation of other employees' sick time subject to the following conditions and limitations:
  - (1) The unit member is a CSEA permanent bargaining unit employee.
  - (2) The unit member suffers from a non-industrial, catastrophic illness or injury which for a period of not less than one hundred (100) work days has caused the employee to be incapacitated from the performance of duty as an employee of the District, and is expected to continue to be incapacitated for an extended period of time (at least 30 days). Examples of such catastrophic illness or injury include life threatening injury or illness, cancer, AIDS, heart surgery, stroke, etc.
  - (3) The unit member has exhausted all of the unit member's available paid leaves, including regular and extended sick leave (1/2 pay) and vacation. Any sick leave and vacation accrued while on catastrophic leave shall be used before donated leave.
  - (4) The maximum number of donated days which may be utilized by one unit member for a single catastrophic illness or injury shall not exceed 125 days.
  - (5) Each unit member shall be limited to one donation request per school year.
  - (6) Donations may only be accepted during a two (2) week call for donations window period.

(7) Donated leave shall be charged on the basis of hour for hour regardless of the classification family and/or salary schedule of employees donating leave and employers receiving leave.

#### d. Administration:

- (1) Applications for benefits shall be submitted to the Human Resources Department on a District form.
- (2) The applicant shall provide medical verification of catastrophic illness or injury from a physician before the application will be considered.
- (3) After verifying the unit member's eligibility, the District's Human Resources Department shall notify the CSEA of the request, and the District and CSEA shall jointly circulate a request for sick leave donations to be submitted to the payroll office (two week window period). A District request form must be used.
- (4) Donated sick leave not used prior to the employee's return to service shall be retained by the donee.
- (5) The donee unit member shall be solely responsible for any taxes on the hours received. Such taxes shall be withheld at the normal rate for the employee. In the event the State or Federal governments rule that a tax liability is due other than what has been withheld, the unit member shall be solely liable for the additional tax.
- e. General: No action taken under this Section shall be subject to the grievance procedure of this agreement or of any other District grievance procedure. Unit members voluntarily participating in this program shall hold the District and the CSEA harmless for any and all disputes arising out of this program. Use of donated sick leave is a privilege and not an entitlement.

## 16.12 Emergency Closures

- a. At any time during the term of this agreement, if the Superintendent/President and/or the Board of Trustees declares an emergency and closes the college, unit members who are thus prevented from working shall be paid their regular day's pay. Notwithstanding, certain unit members may be required to work during such an emergency, in which case they shall be compensated at the rate of one and one half (1 1/2) times their regular rate for all hours worked during said emergency. (Canceling of classes does not constitute college closure).
- b. In situations other than when the college is closed due to an emergency as provided above, unit members may be granted emergency time off from work if either they are required to leave work due to a legitimate concern about the personal safety of themselves, their property or family, or if they are unable to come to work because of such a safety concern. Such emergency leave may be taken, at the employee's option, as either personal necessity leave, vacation or unpaid leave.

## **Article 17: Unit Members working in Part-Time Faculty Assignments**

In compliance with the Department of Labor, Fair Labor Standards Act, the District agrees to pay unit members one and one-half (1 1/2) times their regular rate of pay for all hours worked over forty (40) in one (1) week. Additionally, employees in the state of California are also eligible for overtime compensation for hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours in one day. This calculation of forty hours in a week or eight hours in a day includes classified hours worked as well as hours worked in the normally exempt category of teaching. Unit members are eligible to work as a part-time instructor if they satisfy the following criteria:

- 17.1 It is at the discretion of the instructional hiring department to make an offer for a part-time faculty assignment, which may include a blended overtime rate of compensation.
- 17.2 The unit member must notify their classified supervisor prior to the beginning of the part-time faculty assignment for the semester, including summer sessions. The unit member is responsible for informing their classified supervisor of their assigned part-time faculty schedule prior to the start of the semester.
- Unit members that teach classes at a time that conflicts with their classified job schedule are required to have prior approval from their classified supervisor to accept the part-time faculty assignment. Unit members are required to use an alternative workweek schedule or vacation time to accommodate the part-time faculty assignment. Both of these must be approved in advance. Supervisors shall confer will their Area Vice President if the proposed part-time faculty assignment conflicts with the standard operating hours for which they are employed as a unit member.
- The unit member's most recent evaluation must have an average overall rating of "meets expectations" or better (or satisfactory or better based on pre July 2019 evaluation form).
- 17.5 Unit members are permitted to teach no more than six (6) total TLU's during fall and six (6) total TLU's during spring semesters. Also, unit members are permitted to teach no more than three (3) total TLU's for each summer I and summer II sessions.
- 17.6 Additional part-time instructional assignments may not be completed during the standard operating hours they are employed as a unit member, such as but not limited to, conducting instructional office hours or course preparation time.
- 17.7 It is understood by the unit member that their classified duties take priority and that their part-time faculty workload shall not interfere with their ability to perform essential duties of their classified job. The unit member's supervisor reserves the right to deny approval for a future term assignment should there be a conflict with the completion of essential duties.

#### **Article 18: CSEA RIGHTS**

- All CSEA business, discussions, and activities will be conducted by unit members or CSEA officials outside established work hours except when:
  - 18.1.1 An authorized CSEA representative obtains advance permission from the Superintendent or designee regarding the specific time, place and type of activity to be conducted;
  - 18.1.2 The Superintendent or designee can verify that such requested activities and use of facilities will not interfere with the school programs and/or duties of unit members as defined in Article 1, and will not directly or indirectly interfere with the right of employees to refrain from listening to or speaking with a CSEA representative.
  - 18.1.3 Unit members are allowed one (1) hour per month to attend a CSEA chapter meeting for a total of ten (10) months per year.
- The District agrees to grant CSEA access to employees' work location during the unit member's meal break or after normal working hours. Any CSEA staff member, CSEA officer, and/or Union Steward shall, prior to contacting an employee, make the unit member's presence known to the worksite management office.
- 18.3 CSEA may use District mailboxes, e-mail systems and bulletin board spaces as such spaces may be agreed upon by the Parties.
  - 18.3.1 All postings for bulletin boards or items for school mailboxes must contain the date of posting or distribution and the identification together with a designated authorization by the CSEA Chapter President;
  - 18.3.2 A copy of such postings or distributions must be delivered to the Superintendent or designee at the same time as posting or distribution; and
  - 18.3.3 CSEA will not post or distribute information which is defamatory of the District or its personnel.
- As soon as practicable after execution of this Agreement, the District shall provide a copy of this contract to each unit member.
- The District agrees to provide CSEA with the name, employment date, job class, work location, non-confidential home address, and non-confidential home telephone number of unit members, thirty (30) days after the effective date of this Agreement, with a quarterly update, for the life of this Agreement.

- 18.6 Three (3) CSEA Chapter delegates shall be granted paid release time not to exceed five (5) days to attend the CSEA Annual Conference.
- 18.7 CSEA shall have the right to use, without fee, District facilities at reasonable times for the purpose of CSEA meetings. The CSEA shall be responsible for returning the facilities to the condition they were in before the meeting.
- The CSEA Chapter President shall be granted eight (8) hours per month release time for Chapter business provided that reasonable advance notice be given the employee's supervisor and the time taken is reasonably convenient to the supervisor.
- A CSEA State Officer one (1) shall be granted a total of six (6) hours of travel time for CSEA business each year that the unit member is a state officer.
- The College Planning Council shall have four (4) voting classified unit representatives appointed by CSEA.

CSEA may appoint representatives to the following District Committees:

- a) Benefits Committee: Three (3) voting members in equity with voting representatives from management and instructors' groups;
- b) Equal Employment Opportunity Advisory (EEOA) Committee: Two (2) voting members;
- c) District Technology Committee (DTC): Three (3) voting members;
- d) Budget Resource Allocation Committee (BRAC): Two (2) voting members:
- e) Facilities & Safety (F&S) Committee: Three (3) voting members and one (1) voting member from Facilities & Operations staff from satellite campuses; \* See Article 13: Safety
- f) Any other District-wide committees which may affect classified employees' wages, hours and/or working conditions and/or SB 235 shared governance issues. The District agrees to consult with CSEA to determine the appropriate number of CSEA representatives to be assigned to any such committee(s).

# 18.11 Classified Consultation Group 18.11.1 Introduction

This provision memorializes the intent of the College to provide CSEA with an expanded opportunity to participate in the college consultation process.

# 18.11.2 Purpose

The main consultation body of the Santa Barbara Community College District is the College Planning Council comprised of members appointed by the Academic Senate, CSEA, and the college administration. This body provides input to the President of the College on the allocation of new funding and receives information relating to major initiatives and reallocation of existing funding.

#### 18.11.3 Implementation

- 1. Pursuant to the provision, the District agrees to provide paid release time of up to two hours a month for twelve months for up to ten unit members who will serve as a CSEA Consultation Group to the CSEA designated representatives to the College Planning Council. Comparable release time will also be given to the CSEA representatives to the College Planning Council.
  - a. The manner of selection of designate representatives (ie., by geographical work area or job groups) shall be determined solely by CSEA.
  - b. The conduct of CPC business shall permit reasonable time for the appointed CSEA-CPC members to meet with members of this Consultation Group.
  - c. CSEA-CPC members will make their best effort to structure interaction with members of this Consultation Group (individually or collectively) in a manner that considers Consultation Group members' work area needs including but not limited to providing advance notice to supervisors.
- Participation on the Classified Consultation Group qualifies for consideration for Professional Growth credit.

# **Article 19: SEVERABILITY**

- 19.1 If any provisions of this agreement are held to be contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction such provisions will not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions will continue in full force and effect.
- In the event of suspension or invalidation of any Article or Section of this Agreement, the parties agree to meet and negotiate within sixty (60) days after such determination for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such Article or Section.

## **Article 20: CONCERTED ACTIVITIES**

- It is agreed and understood that there will be no strike, work stoppage, slow-down, picketing (excluding non-disruptive informational picketing), abuse of District leave policies, or refusal or failure to fully and faithfully perform job functions and responsibilities, or other interference with the operations of the District by CSEA or by its officers, agents, or members during the term of this Agreement, including compliance with the request of other labor organizations to engage in such activity.
- CSEA recognizes the duty and obligation of its representative to comply with the provisions of this Agreement and to make every effort toward inducing all unit members to do so. In the event of a strike, work stoppage, slow-down, picketing, abuse of District leave policies, or refusal or failure to fully or faithfully perform job functions and responsibilities, or other interference with the operations of the District by unit members who are represented by CSEA, CSEA agrees in good faith to take all necessary steps to cause those unit members to cease such action.
- 20.3 It is agreed and understood that any unit member violating this Article may be subject to disciplinary action including termination as may be deemed appropriate by the District.
- It is understood that in the event this Article is violated, the District shall be entitled to withdraw any rights, privileges, or services provided for in this Agreement, in District policy, or by Education Code from any unit member and/or CSEA to the extent permitted by law.
- It is agreed that in the event this Article is violated, the District shall be reimbursed by CSEA for any expenses or damages suffered by the District resulting from this violation.
- It is agreed that the District will not engage in any lockout during the term of this Agreement.

# **Article 21: SUPPORT OF AGREEMENT**

CSEA agrees to support this Agreement for its term and will not appear before the public school employer in order to seek change or improvement in any matter subject to the meet and negotiation process except as by mutual agreement of the District and CSEA.

# **Article 22: EFFECT OF AGREEMENT**

It is understood and agreed that the specific provisions contained in this Agreement shall prevail over District practices and procedures and over State laws to the extent permitted by State law, and that in the absence of specific provisions in this Agreement, such practices and procedures are discretionary with the District to the extent permitted by State law.

# **Article 23: COMPLETION OF MEET AND NEGOTIATION**

During the term of this Agreement, the parties expressly waive and relinquish the right to meet and negotiate and agree that the parties shall not be obligated to meet and negotiate with respect to any subject or matter whether or not referred to or covered in this Agreement, even though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both the District or CSEA at the time they met and negotiated on and executed this Agreement, and even though such subjects or matters were proposed and later withdrawn.

## **Article 24: TERM**

#### Article 24: TERM

This CSEA Agreement is for a three (3) year term, effective July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021. It shall remain in full force and effect up to and including June 30, 2021, and thereafter shall continue in effect year by year unless one of the parties notifies the other in writing no later than March 15 of its request to modify, amend or terminate the Agreement.

It is agreed by both parties that at the request of either party they shall meet and negotiate changes in Article 6. Compensation and Benefits, and in one article of each party's choosing and/or one new article for the fiscal years 2019-2020 and 2020-2021. Any such request to meet and negotiate on any of said articles shall be submitted in writing to the other party no later than March 15 of the year preceding the fiscal year subject to such negotiation.

October 10, 2019 Board Approval Date

Elizabeth Auchincloss, President

California School Employees Association

CSEA Chapter 289

Mark Moore

Labor Relations Representative

California School Employees Association

Lyndsay Maas

Chief Negotiator

Santa Barbara Community College District

Dr. Helen Benjamin.

Interim Superintendent/President

Santa Barbara Community

College District

Dr. Robert Miller

President, Board of Trustees

Santa Barbara Community College District

# **APPENDIX A: CSEA BARGAINING UNIT CLASSIFICATION TITLES**

CSEA Classifications - July 2019	Salary Schedule 29 Range		
Athletics			
Athletic Equipment Attendant	16		
Athletic Program Assistant	19		
Athletic Trainer	35		
D. J. J. J. J.			
Bookstore Bookstore Assistant	18		
Bookstore Assistant Bookstore Merchandise Coordinator	32		
Bookstore Textbook Coordinator	32		
Bookstore Textbook Cooldinator	32		
Campus Safety			
Campus Safety Coordinator	36		
Campus Safety Coordinator  Campus Safety Officer	25		
Campus Safety Officer, Senior	32		
Emergency Response Facilitator	36		
Lock Systems Specialist	41		
Clerical/Secretarial			
Administrative Assistant I	26		
Administrative Assistant II	31		
Administrative Assistant III	34		
CLRC Office Assistant, Senior	19		
Educational Programs Support Specialist	31		
Grant Support Specialist	31		
Office Assistant	16		
Office Assistant, Senior	19		
PABX Operator/Receptionist	15		
Communications			
Graphic Designer	34		
Marketing Communications Specialist	40		
Webmaster	44		
Facilities			
Custodian	15		
Lead Custodian	22		
Facilities Assistant	17		
Facilities Assistant, Lead	22		
Grounds Maintenance Worker	16		

Maintenance Specialist Maintenance Technician	33 24
Fiscal Services	
Accountant	36
Accounting Technician I	18
Accounting Technician II	25
Accounting Technician III	32
Administrative Services Coordinator	34
Buyer	28
Buyer, Senior	32
Payroll Coordinator	32
Payroll Technician	25
Food Services	
Food Service Assistant	15
Food Service Facility Operator	29
Health Services	
Nurse Practitioner/Physician's Assistant	54
Wellness Program Nurse	40
Human Resources/Legal Affairs	
Human Resources Specialist	32
HR Technician I	25
HR Technician II	29
HR Technician III	38
Information Technology	
Academic Technology Support Specialist (moved from IS)	36
Database Administrator	52
Duplications Technician	22
Information Systems Specialist	49
Network Specialist	43
Project Lead - SSSP Info Sys Specialist	52
Technology Services Specialist	43
Telecommunications Services Coordinator	38
Instructional Support	
Allied Health & Nursing Laboratory Coord	40

Allied Health & Nursing Laboratory Specialist	32
Assistive Technology Laboratory Tech	32
Associate Teacher - Infant/Toddler	24
Catalog/Schedule Specialist	32
CLL Program Systems Support Specialist	34
CHANNELS Publication Assistant	32
Computer Outreach Lab Coordinator	32
Curriculum Coordinator	32
Degree Analyst	33
Earth & Planetary Science Lab/Field Tech	33
FRC Development Specialist	32
FRC Development Specialist Senior	36
FRC Technology Specialist	32
FRC Web Developer	36
Geoscience Illustrator	28
Instructional Computer Lab Coordinator	32
Instructional Computer Lab Coordinator, Sr	36
Instructional Development Specialist	28
Laboratory Teaching Assistant	32
Laboratory Technician	31
Nursing Laboratory Specialist	33
Nursing Programs Support Specialist	28
Library/Media	
Library Assistant	18
Library Technician	25
Media Technician	25
Research & Evaluation	
Research & Assessment Analyst	36
Research & Assessment Analyst , Senior	40
Research Data Warehouse Specialist	36
Research Data Warehouse Specialist, Senior	49
<b>Student Services</b>	
Admissions & Records Technician	25
Admissions & Records Technician, Sr	28
Articulation/Certification Specialist	33
Assessment Coordinator	36
Assessment Specialist	28
Career Tech Ed Progs Outreach Specialist	33
Distance Ed & LMS Support Specialist	36
Grants Coordinator	33
DSPS Service Provider	34
EOPS Technician	25
ESL Student Services Assistant	25
Financial Aid Specialist	32

Financial Aid Technician	25
International Student Advisor	34
International Outreach & Admission Technician	25
Matriculation/Instructional Support Specialist	28
On-Line Student Support Specialist	36
Program Systems Support Specialist	38
Public Information & Publications Specialist	40
Senior International Student Advisor	36
Student Program Advisor	32
Student Success Coordinator	36
TAP Coordinator	32
Transcript Analyst	33
Transcript Analyst, Lead	36
Tutorial Center Coordinator	33
Tutor Coordinator	26
Veterans Support and Resource Center Coordinator	33
Work Site Coordinator	32
Theatre	
Costume & Make-Up Specialist	24
Theatre Lighting & Sound Specialist	25
Theatre Stagecraft Specialist	29
Theatre Stage & Props Technician	18
Warehouse/Inventory Control	
Inventory Control Technician	23
Purchasing & Warehouse Coordinator	34
Warehouse Assistant	17
	- /

#### **APPENDIX B: HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS**

2010 2020

1. The District will provide for each full-time eligible unit member up to the following sum of money for payment of premiums for existing unit members for mandatory health and welfare benefits. Such amount shall be pro-rated for eligible contract unit members who work less than full-time, but half-time or more.

2019-2020	
Medical Coverage Waiver	\$2,000
Single	\$9,018
Two-party	\$17,298
Family	\$24 114

If the District is unable to implement the increase by the beginning of the plan year, the District will make retroactive adjustments to its premium contributions as soon as practicable.

- 2. Mandatory health and welfare benefits will include:
- (a) The District medical plan (except for verified comparable coverage)
- (b) The District life insurance plan
- (c) The District income protection plan, which will be provided at a payment rate of two-thirds of an employee's regular salary, up to a maximum of \$5,000 per month
- (d) The District dental plan (minimum coverage is employee only), provided however, dental insurance is not required if the employee waives medical insurance (per Section 2(a) above).
- 3. If the total cost of the mandatory benefits is less than the District's contribution, the unit member relinquishes that unused amount (except for waivers).
- 4. A flexible benefits plan (as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 125) consisting of options for premium conversion, unreimbursed medical expenses, and dependent care will be available for employees choosing to participate. Monthly service fees for each employee's flexible benefit plan accounts will be paid by that employee.
- 5. The College Benefits Committee is responsible for the selection of the different benefit programs. If the total cost of the mandatory benefits is more than the District's contribution limits set forth above, then the eligible unit member shall be individually responsible for the difference.
- 6. Bargaining unit members who regularly work more than twenty (20) or more hours per week shall be eligible to participate in the District's tax sheltered annuity plan (403b) program. The District shall as permitted by law continue to permit

employees on medical plan waivers to purchase tax-sheltered annuities from District funds after mandatory benefits are purchased.

7. Early Retirement Incentive Program

## A. Eligibility(1)

- (1) A unit member must have rendered 15 years of full time service with the SBCC and be at least age 55. Five years of that service requirement shall be immediately preceding retirement.
- (2) "Regular" service with the District is defined as service in paid status and shall exclude all hourly casual employment.

#### B. Medical

- (1) The District will contribute the specified premium amount for the retiree's District group medical plan up to a maximum of \$5,755 annually.
- (2) This sum shall be prorated for those normally assigned less than full-time at the time of retirement, in accordance with District policy.
- (3) District contributions shall continue until the retiree reaches age 65 or the date of the retiree's death, whichever is earlier.
- (4) Upon the death of a retiree participating in the early retirement program, a surviving spouse and/or eligible dependents enrolled in the District health insurance program at the time of the employee's death may remain in the District's medical and dental plans indefinitely, so long as they meet the eligibility rules and pay the premiums for such coverage. The District will provide the retiree's District contribution until the date the retiree would have reached age 65 or for 6 months from the date of death whichever is less.

#### 8. Spouse/Dependent Medical Coverage on Death of Active Employee

A. Upon the death of an active employee who is eligible for benefits, a surviving spouse and/or eligible dependents may remain in the District's medical and dental plans in accordance with the provisions of public law (COBRA).

#### 9. Spouse/Dependent Medical Coverage on Death of Retired Employee

A. Upon the death of a retiree who is enrolled in the District's medical and dental plans, a surviving spouse and/or dependents may remain in the District's medical and dental plans indefinitely, so long as they meet the eligibility rules and pay the premiums for such coverage.

# **APPENDIX C: DISTRICT CLASSIFIED EVALUATION FORM**

# Santa Barbara Community College District Classified Employee Evaluation

Employee Name		Classification	<u> </u>	Last	Evaluation Date		
Department/Division		. Employment [	Date	Evalu	ation Period		
Permanent Employee (An	nual) 🔲 Improvement I	Plan Evaluation	☐4 <sup>th</sup> month Pro	omotional □6 <sup>th</sup> r	nonth Promotional		
Probationary Employee [	☐4th Month ☐8th Mo	onth 🔲 11th Mo	onth (Determine F	Permanency)			
Probationary Employee  4th Month 8th Month 11th Month (Determine Permanency)  Review the dimensions of performance: under each category, comment on the employee's accomplishments and challenges during the evaluation period. Indicate the level of performance achieved using the following scale:  5=Outstanding (Consistently exceeds expectations)  4=Exceeds Expectations (Often exceeds expectations)  3=Meets Expectations (Performs according to job description)  2=Needs Improvement (Improvement necessary to meet performance standards)  1=Unsatisfactory (Fails to meet acceptable performance standards)  PLEASE NOTE: Individual category ratings must be in whole numbers							
the work done. Dis		xcellence; looks	for ways to impro	ove and promote	ptable accuracy and is thorough in quality. Work is neat and		
Rating: Comments:	□ 5	4 [	□ 3	□ 2	□1		
Quantity of Work: Volume of work regularly produced within established schedules and deadlines that meet job requirements and guidelines. Demonstrates efficiency in use of time and resources including effective modes of communication i.e. email, telephone.							
Rating: Comments:	5 🗆	4 [	3	□ 2	□ 1		
periods. Carries of	out tasks in an orderly	and diligent m	anner. Carries o	ut the responsib	takes appropriate breaks and meal ilities of the position with minimal and safety precautions.		
Rating: Comments:	□ 5 □	4 [	□ 3	□ 2	□ 1		
Work Attitudes: Endeavors to improve work techniques. Accepts new ideas and procedures. Is cooperative and willing to accept supervisor's suggestions for improvement. Accepts responsibility willingly within the job description guidelines. Balances individual and department responsibilities; works effectively as part of a group.							
Rating: Comments:	□ 5 □	4 [	3	□ 2	□ 1		

5)	along well wi of communic	ps with others: Acts ith fellow staff, stude cation. Consider the understand and resp	ent and the public. degree to which th	Cooperates with s he staff member de	supervisor and other	ers. Observes esta essionalism in intera	ablished channels actions and
Rati Con	ing: nments:	□ 5	□4	□ 3	□ 2	□1	
6)		e-based Qualities: s and new situations. or.		10 to		AC 10 AC	
	ing: nments:	□ 5	□ 4	□ 3	□ 2	□1	
7)	decisions. Tr		co-workers effective	vely. Plans, schedu	ules and makes as	ssignments fair and	Makes good and time d impartially. Motivate op others.
100000	ating: omments:	□ 5	<b>□</b> 4	□ <b>3</b>	□ 2	□1	□ N/A
8)	participate in	al Development: Pa n professional develo Shares knowledge g	opment and caree	r goals. Applies pro	ofessional develop		
-1	ing: mments:	□ 5	□ 4	□ 3	□ 2	<b>□</b> 1	
ن Emplo	yee to initial o	one option:					
l h	ave performed	d work outside my	current Board a	pproved job desc	ription in the pa	st year.	
l h	ave not perfor	med work outside	my current Boa	rd approved job	description in the	e past year.	
hese d	luties are includ	ed by my superviso ded in my current nd my labor repres	Board approved	d job description.	I am requesting	ır. I am unclear as a meeting with m	s to whether or not ny supervisor,
			Perf	formance Goa	als		
	Section 1) List	t goals accomplished	d during this evalu	ıation cycle.			

Section 2) List goals established for	or the next evaluation	cycle.	
Overall Work Performance			
Please calculate the overall performance	divide the total num	ng out the scores above. The formula is as aber of points by the number of applicable	
Please check the employee's overall rate	ting:		
□5 = Outstanding □4 = Exceeds Expe	ectations □3 = Meet	s Expectations	□1 = Unsatisfactory
For probationary employee only, reco	ommend:		
☐ Grant Permanent Status			
☐ Continue Probationary Period (	4th and 8th month e	valuation only)	
☐ Discontinue Employment of Pro	obationary Employe	e	
		ls Improvement" or "Unsatisfactory" mus nent must be included. Comments may	
supervisor. It does not imply that I a	gree with the evalu ave the right to sul	I have read and discussed this evaluation. A copy of this evaluation will be omit a written response to this evaluat I file.	e placed in my
Employee's Signature	Date	Supervisor's Signature	Date
Employee's Printed Name		Supervisor's Printed Name	
		Area Manager Signature	Date
		Area Manager Printed Name	

# APPENDIX D: POST CLASSIFICATION STUDY GRANDPERSON SCHEDULE 20

### APPENDIX D: POST CLASSIFICATION STUDY GRANDPERSON SCHEDULE 20

Table 20	NO INCREASE AS OF
	JULY 2016

RAN GE	STEP A			STEP B			STEP C			STEP D			STEP E	
	Hrly Mthly	Annua	Hr	Mthly	Annua	Hr	Mthly	Annua	Hr	Mthly	Annua	Hrl	Mthly	Annual
		1	ly		1	ly		1	ly		1	y		
1	10.4 1810.3		10.9	1893.		11.4	1985.6		11.9	2075.2			2180.1	
	4 3	4	3	92	7	6	7	8	7	5	3	8	7	2
2	10.6 1852.0		11.1	1935.	Si		2030.4	56		2124.1	81	12.8	2224	26,68
	9 8	5	7	75	9	1	2	5	6	7	0	3		8
3	10.9 1888.8		11.4		23,74		2068.1		12.5		26,04	13.1	2269.8	
	3	6	1	.5	2	3	/	8	2		0	-	3	8
4	11.1 1931.5		11.6	2025.			2111.9			2214.8			2325.9	
-	4 8	9	8	33	4	8	2	3	8	3	8	2	2	1
5	11.3 1971.3		11.8	2061	24,73	1	2161.8		100000000000000000000000000000000000000	2266.8	- A	200000000000000000000000000000000000000	2376.8	28,52
-	7 3	6	9	0.440		7	3	2	8	3	2	1	3	2
6	11.6 2017.1	24,20 6	12.1	2110. 92		12.7 7	2213.8		13.4	2323.9	27,88		2427.7 5	
7		1000			25.00		3	6		2		1		30.00
1	11.8 2058.9	7	12.4	2156. 75	23,88	13.0	2264.7 5	7	13.7	2373.8	20,40	14.3.	2483.8 3	29,80
8				73 2201.			2305.5		400	2415.5				6.00 TO 100 TO 1
0	12.1 2096.6	25,10	12.7	2201. 58	20,41	13.3	2305.5	27,00	13.9	2415.5	20,90	14.5.	2527.5 8	1
9	12.4 2150.6	174	13.0	2258.	1071	126	2368.6	E21	10	2478.6			2600.9	10.25
7	1 7	25,80	3	67	4	7		4	14.5	7	4	15.0.	2000.9	1
10	12.7 2200.5	W 420 HOVE	13.2		27,64		2413.5		1/15	2520.4	S 01 1000000	-	2650.8	
10	8	7	9	.5	27,01	2		20,50	4	2320.4	50,21	9	3	0
11	12.9 2247.4	26.96	13.5	2350.			2468.5		149	2589.7	31.07		2714.0	32.56
	7 2	9	6	33	4	4		2	4	5	7	6	8	9
12	13.2 2294.3	27,53	13.8	2406.	28,87	14.5	2516.4	30,19	15.2	2639.6	31,67	15.9	2769.0	33,22
	4 3	2	8	42	7	2		7	3	7	6	8	8	9
13	13.5 2346.2	28,15	14.1	2458.	29,50	14.8	2579.5	30,95	15.6	2707.9	32,49	16.3	2832.2	33,98
	4 5	5	8	33	0	8	8	5	2	2	5	4	5	7
14	13.8 2394.1	28,73	14.5	2513.	30,16	15.1	2631.5	31,57	15.9	2759.8	33,11	16.7	2896.4	34,75
	1 7	0		42	1	8		8	2	3	8	1	2	7
15	14.1 2450.1	29,40	14.8	2571.	30,85		2691.5		16.3	2825.0			2967.7	
	4 7	2	4	42	7	3		9		8	1	2	5	3
16	14.4 2512.3		15.1	2627.			2754.8			2889.2			3023.7	
862	9 3	8	6	42	9	9	3	8	7		1	5	5	5
17	14.8 2569.3	ACCOUNT OF THE PARTY	15.4	0.000	32,22		2817.9			2956.5	more see		3099.1	
10	2 3	21.45	9	.5	6	6		5	6		8	8	7	0
18	15.1 2621.3	31,45	15.8 5	2747. 67	32,97		2883.1	34,59	17.4	3016.6		18.23	3170.4	38,04
19						47.0	2054.4	2700 ON 0000	47.0	0.00	27.06		2	program access
19	15.4 2684.5 9	32,21 4	16.2	2811. 92	33,74	17.0	2951.4	33,41 7	17.8	3088.9	37,06	18.7	3248.9	38,98 7
20	15.8 2743.5		16.6	2882.		0.75	3012.5	18		3167.4	- 8	- 0	ے 3316.1	8
20	3 8	32,92	10.0	2882. 17	54,56	17.3	3012.5	30,13	18.2	3107.4	9	19.1	33 16. I 7	4
21	16.1 2804.7		16.9	2937.	200		3083.9	-		3229.5			3388.5	40.66
	10.1 2004.7	22,00	10.0	2001.	,	I Gaf	5000.0	57,00	10.0	J225.J	50,75	10.0	5550.5	.0,00

```
5 7 5 17 6 9 2 7
                                                                                           3010 36,12 18.2 3166.4 37,99 19.1 3315.1 39,78 20.0 3473.0 41,67 .5 6 7 2 7 3 7 2 4 8 7
22 16.6 2880.0 34,56 17.3
                      2 8 1 7
              16.9\ 2935.1\ 35,22 \quad 17.7 \quad 3079.\ 36,95 \quad 18.6\ 3226.5\ 38,71 \quad 19.5\ 3387.4\ 40,64 \quad 20.5\ 3552.5\ 42,63
                                                                                                                 7 1
                      3 7 2 7 75
                                                                                                                                                                                   8
                                                                                                                                                                                                      4 2 9
           17.3 3007.4 36,08 18.1
                                                                                                3147 37,76 19.0 3297.8 39,57 19.9 3462.9 41,55 20.9 3623.8 43,48
                                    2 9
                                                                              6
                                                                                                                                             3 3 4
                                                                                                                                                                                                         8 2 5
           17.7 3073.6 36,88 18.5 3221. 38,65 19.4 3377.2 40,52 20.4 3547.4 42,56 21.4 3718.5 44,62
                     3 7 4 9 42 7 8 5 7 7 2 9 5 8
18.5\ 3218.3\ 38,62 \quad 19.4 \quad 3374. \quad 40,49 \quad 20.3\ 3533.1 \quad 42,39 \quad 21.3\ 3706.3 \quad 44,47 \quad 22.4\ 3887.6 \quad 46,65 \quad 46
                      7 3 0 7 25 1 8 7 8 8 3 6 3 7
              18.9\ 3289.6\ 39,47 \quad 19.9 \quad 3452.\ 41,43 \quad 20.8\ 3620.8\ 43,45 \quad 21.9 \quad 3797\ 45,56 \quad 22.9\ 3978.3\ 47,74
                                   7 6
                                                                                                                                            9
                                                                                                                                                                3
29 19.4 3366.0 40,39 20.3
                                                                                               3527 42,32 21.3 3698.1 44,37 22.4 3884.6 46,61 23.4 4066 48,79
                      2 8 3 5
                                                                                                                          4 4
                                                                                                                                                                7 8
```

3	19. 88	3446. 58	41,35 9	20. 87	3616. 67	43,40 0	21. 86	3788. 83	45,46 6	22. 91	3970. 17	47,64 2	24. 03	4164. 83	49,97 8
3	20. 33	3524	42,28 8	21. 33	3697. 17	44,36 6	22. 37	3877. 5	46,53 0	23. 43	4061. 92	48,74	24. 65	4271. 83	51,26 2
3 2	20. 83	3610. 5	43,32 6	21. 85	3786. 83	45,44 2	22. 88	3965. 08	47,58 1	24	4159. 67	49,91 6	25. 19	4365. 5	52,38 6
3	21. 26	3684. 92	44,21 9	22.	3865. 25	46,38 3		4059. 83	48,71 8	24. 56	4257. 5	51,09 0	25. 76	4465. 33	53,58 4
3	21. 81	3780. 75	45,36 9		3963. 08	47,55 7		4153. 58	49,84 3		4360. 42	52,32 5	26. 36	4569. 25	54,83
3	22.	3864.	46,37	23.	4055.	48,66	24.	4250.	51,00	25.	4460.	53,52	27.	4686.	56,23
5	29 22.	25 3960	1 47,52		75 4149.	9 49,79	10000	42 4354.	5 52,25	73 26.	25 4568.	54,81	04 27.	42 4789.	7 57,47
6	85 23.	4051.	0 48,62	94 24.	5 4241.	4 50,89	12 25.	33 4457.	2 53,48	36 26.	25 4673.	9 56,07	63 28.	33 4900.	2 58,80
7	38	75	1	47	25	5	71	17	6	96	17	8	27	42	5
3	23. 93	4147. 5	49,77 0	25. 11	4352. 25	52,22 7	26. 34	4566. 17	54,79 4	27. 61	4785. 25	57,42 3	28. 96	5019. 58	60,23 5
3	24. 45	4237. 08	50,84 5	25. 69	4452. 08	53,42 5	26. 91	4664	55,96 8	28. 24	4895. 25	58,74 3	29. 58	5127. 5	61,53 0
4	25.	4339	52,06	26.	4557	54,68		4776.	57,31	28.	5010.	60,12	30.	5264.	63,16
0	03 25.	4433.	8 53,20	29 26.	4656.	4 55,88	55 28.	08 4882.	3 58,58	91 29.	42 5121.	5 61,45	37 31.	08 5375.	9 64,50
1	58	75	5	87	83	2	17	08	5	55	5	8	01	08	1
4 2	26. 22	4544. 83	54,53 8	27. 54	4773	57,27 6	28. 83	4997. 08	59,96 5	30. 28	5248. 83	62,98 6	31. 7	5495. 33	65,94 4
4	26. 86	4655. 83	55,87 0	28. 13	4874. 92	58,49 9	29. 54	5120. 42	61,44 5	31	5373. 08	64,47 7	32. 52	5635. 92	67,63 1
4	27. 51	4767. 92	57,21 5	28. 82	4995. 08	59,94 1	30. 22	5238. 58	62,86 3	31. 7	5494. 33	65,93 2	33. 29	5770. 42	69,24 5
4	28. 13	4874. 92	58,49 9	29. 54	5120. 42	61,44 5	31	5373. 08	64,47 7		5635. 92	67,63 1	34. 11	5912	70,94
4	28.	4995.	59,94	30.	5238.	62,86	31.	5494.	65,93	33.	5770.	69,24	34.	6052.	72,63
6	82	08	1	22	58	3	7	33	2	29	42	5	92	58	1
7	29. 52	5117. 33	61,40 8	30. 96	5366. 92	64,40 3	32. 5	5633. 92	67,60 7	34. 1	5911	70,93 2	35. 78	6201. 33	74,41 6
4 8	30. 18	5230. 5	62,76 6	31. 69	5492. 25	65,90 7	33. 28	5768. 42	69,22 1	34. 88	6045. 42	72,54 5	36. 58	6340. 92	76,09 1
4	30. 96	5365. 92	64,39 1	32. 49	5630. 83	67,57 0	34. 09	5909	70,90 8	35. 72	6191. 17	74,29 4	37. 51	6501. 92	78,02 3
5	31. 66	5487. 17	65,84 6	33. 21	5756. 08	69,07 3		6039. 42	72,47 3		6333. 75	76,00 5	38. 35	6646. 5	79,75 8
5	32.	5620.	67,44	34.	5894.	70,73	35.	6188.	74,25	37.	6485.	77,82	39.	6812.	81,75
1	43	67	8	01	67	6	7	17	8	42	58	70.75	3	58	22.67
5 2	33. 21	5756. 08	69,07 3	34. 84	6039. 42	72,47 3	36. 54	6333. 75	76,00 5	38. 35	6646. 5	79,75 8	40. 23	6972. 58	83,67 1
5	34. 01	5894. 67	70,73 6	35. 7	6188. 17	74,25 8	37. 42	6485. 58	77,82 7	39. 3	6812. 58	81,75 1	41. 24	7147. 83	85,77 4
5	34.	6036.	72,43	36.	6325.	8 75,90		6640.	79,68		6970.	83,64	42.	7311.	87,74
4	83	25	5	49	58	7	31	5	6	22	58	7	18	83	2
5	35.	6186.	74,23	37.	6480.	77,76		6810.	81,72	41.	7143.	85,72	43.	7498.	89,98
5	69	08	3	39	5	6 70.66	29	58	7	21	75	5 87.70	26	33	02.03
5	36.	6324.	75,89	38.	6638.	79,66	40.	6968.	83,62	42.	7308.	87,70	44.	7669.	92,03

6	49	58	5	3	42	1	2	5	2	17	83	6	25	42	3
5	37.	6479.	77,75	39.	6806.	81,67	41.	7139.	85,67	43.	7497.	89,96	45.	7862	94,34
7	38	5	4	27	5	8	19	67	6	25	25	7	36		4
5	38.	6638.	79,66		6968.	83,62	42.	7308.	87,70	44.	7669.	92,03	46.	8053.	96,64
8	3	42	1	2	5	2	17	83	6	25	42	3	46	5	2
5	39.	6806.	81,67		7139.	85,67	43.	7497.	89,96		7862		47.	8258.	99,10
9	27	5	8	19	67	6	25	25	7	36		4	65	33	0
6	40.	6968.	83,62	42.	7308.	87,70	44.	7669.	92,03	46.	8053.	200	48.	8453.	101,4
0	2	5	2	17	83	6	25	42	3	46	5	2	77	83	46
6	41.	7137.	85,65	43.	7485	89,82	45.	7856.	94,28		8246.		49.	8654.	103,8
1	18	67	2	18	7004	0	33	92	3	57	08	3	93	58	55
6	42. 14	7303. 67	87,64 4	44. 2	7661. 25	91,93 5	46. 42	8045. 33	96,54 4	48. 66	8434. 5	101,2 14	51. 05	8849. 17	106,1 90
6	43	7479.	89,75			94,23	4Z 47.	8228.	98,74		8640.			9073.	108,8
3	43. 15	7479. 92	9	45. 31	7852. 75	3	47.	8228. 75	5	49. 85	33	84	52. 35	9073. 25	79
2	15	52	2	01	75	2	47	75	2	00	55	0-7	55	25	10
6	44.	7657.	91,88	46.	8038.	96,45	48.	8433.	101,2	0 51.	8847.1	106,16	53.	9290.	111,48
4	18	25	7	38	25	9	66	5	2	04	7	6	6	33	4
6	45.	7837.	94,05	47.	8222.	98,67	49.	8630.	103,5	6 52.	9059.0	108,70	54.	9509.	114,11
5	22	58	1	44	58	1	79	17	2	26	8	9	86	33	2
6	46.	8033.	96,39	48.	8425.	101,1	51.	8841	106,0	0200200	9282.1		200	9737.	116,85
6	35	08	7	61	42	05	01		2	55	7		18	58	1
6	47.	8222.	98,67	49.	8630.	103,5	52.		108,7	100.000	9509.3			9981	119,77
7	44	58	1	79	17	62	26		9	86	3		58		2
6	48.	8425.	101,1	51.	8841	106,0	53.		111,3	15.05	9737.5		2.00	1022	122,68
8	61	42	05	01		92	55		6	18	8		98	3.6	3
6	49.	8630.	103,5	52.	9059.	108,7	54.		114,1		9981	30000 mm		1048	125,78 7
9	79	17	62	26	80	09	86		(0.500)	58	40000	2	48	2.3	50
7	51. 01	8841	106,0 92	53. 55	9282. 17	111,3 86	56. 18		116,8	5 58. 98	10223. 58		61. 89	1072 7.8	128,73 4
7		9058.	108,6	54.	9508.	114,1			119,7					1099	131,96
1	52. 26	9058.	97	54. 86	9508.	00	57. 58		0	6 60. 46	10480.	200	63. 44	6.8	131,90
1	20	00	21	30	55	00	50		0	40	20	2	77	0.0	•

# APPENDIX E: CSEA SALARY SCHEDULE TABLE 29 CLASSIFIED & CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES

Salary Table 29 - Classified & Confidential - 2018-2019

Range	Туре	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9
1	Hourly	\$12.76	\$13.08	\$13.40	\$13.74	\$14.08	\$14.42	\$14.79	\$15.15	\$15.52
	Monthly	\$2,212.17	\$2,267.50	\$2,322.83	\$2,381.50	\$2,440.17	\$2,499.92	\$2,563.08	\$2,626.17	\$2,690.42
	Annual	\$26,546	\$27,210	\$27,874	\$28,578	\$29,282	\$29,999	\$30,757	\$31,514	\$32,285
2	Hourly	\$13.08	\$13.40	\$13.74	\$14.08	\$14.42	\$14.79	\$15.15	\$15.52	\$15.90
	Monthly	\$2,267.50	\$2,322.83	\$2,381.50	\$2,440.17	\$2,499.92	\$2,563.08	\$2,626.17	\$2,690.42	\$2,756.75
	Annual	\$27,210	\$27,874	\$28,578	\$29,282	\$29,999	\$30,757	\$31,514	\$32,285	\$33,081
3	Hourly	\$13.40	\$13.74	\$14.08	\$14.42	\$14.79	\$15.15	\$15.52	\$15.90	\$16.29
	Monthly	\$2,322.83	\$2,381.50	\$2,440.17	\$2,499.92	\$2,563.08	\$2,626.17	\$2,690.42	\$2,756.75	\$2,824.33
	Annual	\$27,874	\$28,578	\$29,282	\$29,999	\$30,757	\$31,514	\$32,285	\$33,081	\$33,892
4	Hourly	\$13.74	\$14.08	\$14.42	\$14.79	\$15.15	\$15.52	\$15.90	\$16.29	\$16.71
	Monthly	\$2,381.50	\$2,440.17	\$2,499.92	\$2,563.08	\$2,626.17	\$2,690.42	\$2,756.75	\$2,824.33	\$2,896.25
	Annual	\$28,578	\$29,282	\$29,999	\$30,757	\$31,514	\$32,285	\$33,081	\$33,892	\$34,755
5	Hourly	\$14.08	\$14.42	\$14.79	\$15.15	\$15.52	\$15.90	\$16.29	\$16.71	\$17.12
	Monthly	\$2,440.17	\$2,499.92	\$2,563.08	\$2,626.17	\$2,690.42	\$2,756.75	\$2,824.33	\$2,896.25	\$2,967.17
	Annual	\$29,282	\$29,999	\$30,757	\$31,514	\$32,285	\$33,081	\$33,892	\$34,755	\$35,606
6	Hourly	\$14.42	\$14.79	\$15.15	\$15.52	\$15.90	\$16.29	\$16.71	\$17.12	\$17.55
	Monthly	\$2,499.92	\$2,563.08	\$2,626.17	\$2,690.42	\$2,756.75	\$2,824.33	\$2,896.25	\$2,967.17	\$3,042.42
	Annual	\$29,999	\$30,757	\$31,514	\$32,285	\$33,081	\$33,892	\$34,755	\$35,606	\$36,509
7	Hourly	\$14.79	\$15.15	\$15.52	\$15.90	\$16.29	\$16.71	\$17.12	\$17.55	\$18.00
	Monthly	\$2,563.08	\$2,626.17	\$2,690.42	\$2,756.75	\$2,824.33	\$2,896.25	\$2,967.17	\$3,042.42	\$3,119.92
	Annual	\$30,757	\$31,514	\$32,285	\$33,081	\$33,892	\$34,755	\$35,606	\$36,509	\$37,439
8	Hourly	\$15.15	\$15.52	\$15.90	\$16.29	\$16.71	\$17.12	\$17.55	\$18.00	\$18.45
	Monthly	\$2,626.17	\$2,690.42	\$2,756.75	\$2,824.33	\$2,896.25	\$2,967.17	\$3,042.42	\$3,119.92	\$3,197.50
	Annual	\$31,514	\$32,285	\$33,081	\$33,892	\$34,755	\$35,606	\$36,509	\$37,439	\$38,370
9	Hourly	\$15.52	\$15.90	\$16.29	\$16.71	\$17.12	\$17.55	\$18.00	\$18.45	\$18.91
	Monthly	\$2,690.42	\$2,756.75	\$2,824.33	\$2,896.25	\$2,967.17	\$3,042.42	\$3,119.92	\$3,197.50	\$3,277.08
	Annual	\$32,285	\$33,081	\$33,892	\$34,755	\$35,606	\$36,509	\$37,439	\$38,370	\$39,325
10	Hourly	\$15.90	\$16.29	\$16.71	\$17.12	\$17.55	\$18.00	\$18.45	\$18.91	\$19.37
	Monthly	\$2,756.75	\$2,824.33	\$2,896.25	\$2,967.17	\$3,042.42	\$3,119.92	\$3,197.50	\$3,277.08	\$3,357.92
	Annual	\$33,081	\$33,892	\$34,755	\$35,606	\$36,509	\$37,439	\$38,370	\$39,325	\$40,295
11	Hourly	\$16.29	\$16.71	\$17.12	\$17.55	\$18.00	\$18.45	\$18.91	\$19.37	\$19.87
	Monthly	\$2,824.33	\$2,896.25	\$2,967.17	\$3,042.42	\$3,119.92	\$3,197.50	\$3,277.08	\$3,357.92	\$3,443.25
	Annual	\$33,892	\$34,755	\$35,606	\$36,509	\$37,439	\$38,370	\$39,325	\$40,295	\$41,319
12	Hourly	\$16.71	\$17.12	\$17.55	\$18.00	\$18.45	\$18.91	\$19.37	\$19.87	\$20.36
	Monthly	\$2,896.25	\$2,967.17	\$3,042.42	\$3,119.92	\$3,197.50	\$3,277.08	\$3,357.92	\$3,443.25	\$3,528.33
	Annual	\$34,755	\$35,606	\$36,509	\$37,439	\$38,370	\$39,325	\$40,295	\$41,319	\$42,340
13	Hourly	\$17.12	\$17.55	\$18.00	\$18.45	\$18.91	\$19.37	\$19.87	\$20.36	\$20.86
	Monthly	\$2,967.17	\$3,042.42	\$3,119.92	\$3,197.50	\$3,277.08	\$3,357.92	\$3,443.25	\$3,528.33	\$3,615.83
	Annual	\$35,606	\$36,509	\$37,439	\$38,370	\$39,325	\$40,295	\$41,319	\$42,340	\$43,390
14	Hourly	\$17.55	\$18.00	\$18.45	\$18.91	\$19.37	\$19.87	\$20.36	\$20.86	\$21.39
	Monthly	\$3,042.42	\$3,119.92	\$3,197.50	\$3,277.08	\$3,357.92	\$3,443.25	\$3,528.33	\$3,615.83	\$3,707.75
	Annual	\$36,509	\$37,439	\$38,370	\$39,325	\$40,295	\$41,319	\$42,340	\$43,390	\$44,493
15	Hourly Monthly Annual		\$18.45 \$3,197.50 \$38,370	\$18.91 \$3,277.08 \$39,325	\$19.37 \$3,357.92 \$40,295	\$19.87 \$3,443.25 \$41,319	\$20.36 \$3,528.33 \$42,340	\$20.86 \$3,615.83 \$43,390	\$21.39 \$3,707.75 \$44,493	\$21.93 \$3,801.83 \$45,622
16	Hourly	\$18.45	\$18.91	\$19.37	\$19.87	\$20.36	\$20.86	\$21.39	\$21.93	\$22.47
	Monthly	\$3,197.50	\$3,277.08	\$3,357.92	\$3,443.25	\$3,528.33	\$3,615.83	\$3,707.75	\$3,801.83	\$3,894.83
	Annual	\$38,370	\$39,325	\$40,295	\$41,319	\$42,340	\$43,390	\$44,493	\$45,622	\$46,738
17	Hourly	\$18.91	\$19.37	\$19.87	\$20.36	\$20.86	\$21.39	\$21.93	\$22.47	\$23.04
	Monthly	\$3,277.08	\$3,357.92	\$3,443.25	\$3,528.33	\$3,615.83	\$3,707.75	\$3,801.83	\$3,894.83	\$3,993.33
	Annual	\$39,325	\$40,295	\$41,319	\$42,340	\$43,390	\$44,493	\$45,622	\$46,738	\$47,920

Salary Table 29 - Classified & Confidential - 2018-2019

Range	Туре	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9
18	Hourly	\$19.37	\$19.87	\$20.36	\$20.86	\$21.39	\$21.93	\$22.47	\$23.04	\$23.61
	Monthly	\$3,357.92	\$3,443.25	\$3,528.33	\$3,615.83	\$3,707.75	\$3,801.83	\$3,894.83	\$3,993.33	\$4,093.08
	Annual	\$40,295	\$41,319	\$42,340	\$43,390	\$44,493	\$45,622	\$46,738	\$47,920	\$49,117
19	Hourly	\$19.87	\$20.36	\$20.86	\$21.39	\$21.93	\$22.47	\$23.04	\$23.61	\$24.20
	Monthly	\$3,443.25	\$3,528.33	\$3,615.83	\$3,707.75	\$3,801.83	\$3,894.83	\$3,993.33	\$4,093.08	\$4,194.92
	Annual	\$41,319	\$42,340	\$43,390	\$44,493	\$45,622	\$46,738	\$47,920	\$49,117	\$50,339
20	Hourly	\$20.36	\$21	\$22	\$22	\$23	\$24	\$24	\$25	\$25
	Monthly	\$3,529	\$3,616	\$3,708	\$3,802	\$3,895	\$3,994	\$4,094	\$4,195	\$4,299
	Annual	\$42,340	\$43,390	\$44,493	\$45,622	\$46,738	\$47,920	\$49,117	\$50,339	\$51,587
21	Hourly	\$20.86	\$21.39	\$21.93	\$22.47	\$23.04	\$23.61	\$24.20	\$24.80	\$25.43
	Monthly	\$3,615.83	\$3,707.75	\$3,801.83	\$3,894.83	\$3,993.33	\$4,093.08	\$4,194.92	\$4,298.92	\$4,408.58
	Annual	\$43,390	\$44,493	\$45,622	\$46,738	\$47,920	\$49,117	\$50,339	\$51,587	\$52,903
22	Hourly	\$21.39	\$21.93	\$22.47	\$23.04	\$23.61	\$24.20	\$24.80	\$25.43	\$26.06
	Monthly	\$3,707.75	\$3,801.83	\$3,894.83	\$3,993.33	\$4,093.08	\$4,194.92	\$4,298.92	\$4,408.58	\$4,517.17
	Annual	\$44,493	\$45,622	\$46,738	\$47,920	\$49,117	\$50,339	\$51,587	\$52,903	\$54,206
23	Hourly	\$21.93	\$22.47	\$23.04	\$23.61	\$24.20	\$24.80	\$25.43	\$26.06	\$26.71
	Monthly	\$3,801.83	\$3,894.83	\$3,993.33	\$4,093.08	\$4,194.92	\$4,298.92	\$4,408.58	\$4,517.17	\$4,630.00
	Annual	\$45,622	\$46,738	\$47,920	\$49,117	\$50,339	\$51,587	\$52,903	\$54,206	\$55,560
24	Hourly	\$22.47	\$23.04	\$23.61	\$24.20	\$24.80	\$25.43	\$26.06	\$26.71	\$27.38
	Monthly	\$3,894.83	\$3,993.33	\$4,093.08	\$4,194.92	\$4,298.92	\$4,408.58	\$4,517.17	\$4,630.00	\$4,746.17
	Annual	\$46,738	\$47,920	\$49,117	\$50,339	\$51,587	\$52,903	\$54,206	\$55,560	\$56,954
25	Hourly	\$23.04	\$23.62	\$24.20	\$24.80	\$25.44	\$26.07	\$26.71	\$27.39	\$28.07
	Monthly	\$3,994	\$4,094	\$4,195	\$4,299	\$4,409	\$4,518	\$4,630	\$4,747	\$4,865
	Annual	\$47,920	\$49,117	\$50,339	\$51,587	\$52,903	\$54,206	\$55,560	\$56,954	\$58,376
26	Hourly	\$23.61	\$24.20	\$24.80	\$25.43	\$26.06	\$26.71	\$27.38	\$28.07	\$28.77
	Monthly	\$4,093.08	\$4,194.92	\$4,298.92	\$4,408.58	\$4,517.17	\$4,630.00	\$4,746.17	\$4,864.67	\$4,986.42
	Annual	\$49,117	\$50,339	\$51,587	\$52,903	\$54,206	\$55,560	\$56,954	\$58,376	\$59,837
27	Hourly	\$24.20	\$24.80	\$25.43	\$26.06	\$26.71	\$27.38	\$28.07	\$28.77	\$29.48
	Monthly	\$4,194.92	\$4,298.92	\$4,408.58	\$4,517.17	\$4,630.00	\$4,746.17	\$4,864.67	\$4,986.42	\$5,110.50
	Annual	\$50,339	\$51,587	\$52,903	\$54,206	\$55,560	\$56,954	\$58,376	\$59,837	\$61,326
28	Hourly	\$24.80	\$25.43	\$26.06	\$26.71	\$27.38	\$28.07	\$28.77	\$29.48	\$30.23
	Monthly	\$4,298.92	\$4,408.58	\$4,517.17	\$4,630.00	\$4,746.17	\$4,864.67	\$4,986.42	\$5,110.50	\$5,238.92
	Annual	\$51,587	\$52,903	\$54,206	\$55,560	\$56,954	\$58,376	\$59,837	\$61,326	\$62,867
29	Hourly	\$25.43	\$26.06	\$26.71	\$27.38	\$28.07	\$28.77	\$29.48	\$30.23	\$30.97
	Monthly	\$4,408.58	\$4,517.17	\$4,630.00	\$4,746.17	\$4,864.67	\$4,986.42	\$5,110.50	\$5,238.92	\$5,368.50
	Annual	\$52,903	\$54,206	\$55,560	\$56,954	\$58,376	\$59,837	\$61,326	\$62,867	\$64,422
30	Hourly	\$26.06	\$26.71	\$27.38	\$28.07	\$28.77	\$29.48	\$30.23	\$30.97	\$31.76
	Monthly	\$4,517.17	\$4,630.00	\$4,746.17	\$4,864.67	\$4,986.42	\$5,110.50	\$5,238.92	\$5,368.50	\$5,504.67
	Annual	\$54,206	\$55,560	\$56,954	\$58,376	\$59,837	\$61,326	\$62,867	\$64,422	\$66,056
31	Hourly	\$26.71	\$27.38	\$28.07	\$28.77	\$29.48	\$30.23	\$30.97	\$31.76	\$32.55
	Monthly	\$4,630.00	\$4,746.17	\$4,864.67	\$4,986.42	\$5,110.50	\$5,238.92	\$5,368.50	\$5,504.67	\$5,641.92
	Annual	\$55,560	\$56,954	\$58,376	\$59,837	\$61,326	\$62,867	\$64,422	\$66,056	\$67,703
32	Hourly	\$27.38	\$28.07	\$28.77	\$29.48	\$30.23	\$30.97	\$31.76	\$32.55	\$33.36
	Monthly	\$4,746.17	\$4,864.67	\$4,986.42	\$5,110.50	\$5,238.92	\$5,368.50	\$5,504.67	\$5,641.92	\$5,782.58
	Annual	\$56,954	\$58,376	\$59,837	\$61,326	\$62,867	\$64,422	\$66,056	\$67,703	\$69,391
33	Hourly	\$28.07	\$28.77	\$29.48	\$30.23	\$30.97	\$31.76	\$32.55	\$33.36	\$34.19
	Monthly	\$4,864.67	\$4,986.42	\$5,110.50	\$5,238.92	\$5,368.50	\$5,504.67	\$5,641.92	\$5,782.58	\$5,926.42
	Annual	\$58,376	\$59,837	\$61,326	\$62,867	\$64,422	\$66,056	\$67,703	\$69,391	\$71,117
34	Hourly	\$28.77	\$29.48	\$30.23	\$30.97	\$31.76	\$32.55	\$33.36	\$34.19	\$35.05
	Monthly	\$4,986.42	\$5,110.50	\$5,238.92	\$5,368.50	\$5,504.67	\$5,641.92	\$5,782.58	\$5,926.42	\$6,074.75
	Annual	\$59,837	\$61,326	\$62,867	\$64,422	\$66,056	\$67,703	\$69,391	\$71,117	\$72,897

Salary Table 29 - Classified & Confidential - 2018-2019

Range	Туре	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9
35	Hourly	\$29.48	\$30.23	\$30.97	\$31.76	\$32.55	\$33.36	\$34.19	\$35.05	\$35.93
	Monthly	\$5,110.50	\$5,238.92	\$5,368.50	\$5,504.67	\$5,641.92	\$5,782.58	\$5,926.42	\$6,074.75	\$6,227.50
	Annual	\$61,326	\$62,867	\$64,422	\$66,056	\$67,703	\$69,391	\$71,117	\$72,897	\$74,730
36	Hourly	\$30.23	\$30.97	\$31.76	\$32.55	\$33.36	\$34.19	\$35.05	\$35.93	\$36.82
	Monthly	\$5,238.92	\$5,368.50	\$5,504.67	\$5,641.92	\$5,782.58	\$5,926.42	\$6,074.75	\$6,227.50	\$6,381.50
	Annual	\$62,867	\$64,422	\$66,056	\$67,703	\$69,391	\$71,117	\$72,897	\$74,730	\$76,578
37	Hourly	\$30.97	\$31.76	\$32.55	\$33.36	\$34.19	\$35.05	\$35.93	\$36.82	\$37.74
	Monthly	\$5,368.50	\$5,504.67	\$5,641.92	\$5,782.58	\$5,926.42	\$6,074.75	\$6,227.50	\$6,381.50	\$6,541.92
	Annual	\$64,422	\$66,056	\$67,703	\$69,391	\$71,117	\$72,897	\$74,730	\$76,578	\$78,503
38	Hourly	\$31.76	\$32.55	\$33.36	\$34.19	\$35.05	\$35.93	\$36.82	\$37.74	\$38.69
	Monthly	\$5,504.67	\$5,641.92	\$5,782.58	\$5,926.42	\$6,074.75	\$6,227.50	\$6,381.50	\$6,541.92	\$6,705.92
	Annual	\$66,056	\$67,703	\$69,391	\$71,117	\$72,897	\$74,730	\$76,578	\$78,503	\$80,471
39	Hourly	\$32.55	\$33.36	\$34.19	\$35.05	\$35.93	\$36.82	\$37.74	\$38.69	\$39.65
	Monthly	\$5,641.92	\$5,782.58	\$5,926.42	\$6,074.75	\$6,227.50	\$6,381.50	\$6,541.92	\$6,705.92	\$6,872.92
	Annual	\$67,703	\$69,391	\$71,117	\$72,897	\$74,730	\$76,578	\$78,503	\$80,471	\$82,475
40	Hourly	\$33.36	\$34.19	\$35.05	\$35.93	\$36.82	\$37.74	\$38.69	\$39.65	\$40.64
	Monthly	\$5,782.58	\$5,926.42	\$6,074.75	\$6,227.50	\$6,381.50	\$6,541.92	\$6,705.92	\$6,872.92	\$7,043.50
	Annual	\$69,391	\$71,117	\$72,897	\$74,730	\$76,578	\$78,503	\$80,471	\$82,475	\$84,522
41	Hourly	\$34.19	\$35.05	\$35.93	\$36.82	\$37.74	\$38.69	\$39.65	\$40.64	\$41.66
	Monthly	\$5,926.42	\$6,074.75	\$6,227.50	\$6,381.50	\$6,541.92	\$6,705.92	\$6,872.92	\$7,043.50	\$7,221.75
	Annual	\$71,117	\$72,897	\$74,730	\$76,578	\$78,503	\$80,471	\$82,475	\$84,522	\$86,661
42	Hourly	\$35.05	\$35.93	\$36.82	\$37.74	\$38.69	\$39.65	\$40.64	\$41.66	\$42.70
	Monthly	\$6,074.75	\$6,227.50	\$6,381.50	\$6,541.92	\$6,705.92	\$6,872.92	\$7,043.50	\$7,221.75	\$7,401.08
	Annual	\$72,897	\$74,730	\$76,578	\$78,503	\$80,471	\$82,475	\$84,522	\$86,661	\$88,813
43	Hourly	\$35.93	\$36.82	\$37.74	\$38.69	\$39.65	\$40.64	\$41.66	\$42.70	\$43.77
	Monthly	\$6,227.50	\$6,381.50	\$6,541.92	\$6,705.92	\$6,872.92	\$7,043.50	\$7,221.75	\$7,401.08	\$7,587.08
	Annual	\$74,730	\$76,578	\$78,503	\$80,471	\$82,475	\$84,522	\$86,661	\$88,813	\$91,045
44	Hourly	\$36.82	\$37.74	\$38.69	\$39.65	\$40.64	\$41.66	\$42.70	\$43.77	\$44.88
	Monthly	\$6,381.50	\$6,541.92	\$6,705.92	\$6,872.92	\$7,043.50	\$7,221.75	\$7,401.08	\$7,587.08	\$7,778.58
	Annual	\$76,578	\$78,503	\$80,471	\$82,475	\$84,522	\$86,661	\$88,813	\$91,045	\$93,343
45	Hourly	\$37.74	\$38.69	\$39.65	\$40.64	\$41.66	\$42.70	\$43.77	\$44.88	\$45.99
	Monthly	\$6,541.92	\$6,705.92	\$6,872.92	\$7,043.50	\$7,221.75	\$7,401.08	\$7,587.08	\$7,778.58	\$7,971.25
	Annual	\$78,503	\$80,471	\$82,475	\$84,522	\$86,661	\$88,813	\$91,045	\$93,343	\$95,655
46	Hourly	\$38.69	\$39.65	\$40.64	\$41.66	\$42.70	\$43.77	\$44.88	\$45.99	\$47.15
	Monthly	\$6,705.92	\$6,872.92	\$7,043.50	\$7,221.75	\$7,401.08	\$7,587.08	\$7,778.58	\$7,971.25	\$8,171.67
	Annual	\$80,471	\$82,475	\$84,522	\$86,661	\$88,813	\$91,045	\$93,343	\$95,655	\$98,060
47	Hourly	\$39.65	\$40.64	\$41.66	\$42.70	\$43.77	\$44.88	\$45.99	\$47.15	\$48.31
	Monthly	\$6,872.92	\$7,043.50	\$7,221.75	\$7,401.08	\$7,587.08	\$7,778.58	\$7,971.25	\$8,171.67	\$8,374.33
	Annual	\$82,475	\$84,522	\$86,661	\$88,813	\$91,045	\$93,343	\$95,655	\$98,060	\$100,492
48	Hourly	\$40.64	\$41.66	\$42.70	\$43.77	\$44.88	\$45.99	\$47.15	\$48.31	\$49.53
	Monthly	\$7,043.50	\$7,221.75	\$7,401.08	\$7,587.08	\$7,778.58	\$7,971.25	\$8,171.67	\$8,374.33	\$8,584.58
	Annual	\$84,522	\$86,661	\$88,813	\$91,045	\$93,343	\$95,655	\$98,060	\$100,492	\$103,015
49	Hourly	\$41.66	\$42.70	\$43.77	\$44.88	\$45.99	\$47.15	\$48.31	\$49.53	\$50.76
	Monthly	\$7,221.75	\$7,401.08	\$7,587.08	\$7,778.58	\$7,971.25	\$8,171.67	\$8,374.33	\$8,584.58	\$8,798.33
	Annual	\$86,661	\$88,813	\$91,045	\$93,343	\$95,655	\$98,060	\$100,492	\$103,015	\$105,580
50	Hourly	\$42.70	\$43.77	\$44.88	\$45.99	\$47.15	\$48.31	\$49.53	\$50.76	\$52.04
	Monthly	\$7,401.08	\$7,587.08	\$7,778.58	\$7,971.25	\$8,171.67	\$8,374.33	\$8,584.58	\$8,798.33	\$9,019.67
	Annual	\$88,813	\$91,045	\$93,343	\$95,655	\$98,060	\$100,492	\$103,015	\$105,580	\$108,236
51	Hourly	\$43.77	\$44.88	\$45.99	\$47.15	\$48.31	\$49.53	\$50.76	\$52.04	\$53.34
	Monthly	\$7,587.08	\$7,778.58	\$7,971.25	\$8,171.67	\$8,374.33	\$8,584.58	\$8,798.33	\$9,019.67	\$9,245.58
	Annual	\$91,045	\$93,343	\$95,655	\$98,060	\$100,492	\$103,015	\$105,580	\$108,236	\$110,947

Salary Table 29 - Classified & Confidential - 2018-2019

Range	Туре	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9
52	Hourly	\$44.88	\$45.99	\$47.15	\$48.31	\$49.53	\$50.76	\$52.04	\$53.34	\$54.68
	Monthly	\$7,778.58	\$7,971.25	\$8,171.67	\$8,374.33	\$8,584.58	\$8,798.33	\$9,019.67	\$9,245.58	\$9,476.92
	Annual	\$93,343	\$95,655	\$98,060	\$100,492	\$103,015	\$105,580	\$108,236	\$110,947	\$113,723
53	Hourly	\$45.99	\$47.15	\$48.31	\$49.53	\$50.76	\$52.04	\$53.34	\$54.68	\$56.05
	Monthly	\$7,971.25	\$8,171.67	\$8,374.33	\$8,584.58	\$8,798.33	\$9,019.67	\$9,245.58	\$9,476.92	\$9,714.92
	Annual	\$95,655	\$98,060	\$100,492	\$103,015	\$105,580	\$108,236	\$110,947	\$113,723	\$116,579
54	Hourly	\$47.15	\$48.31	\$49.53	\$50.76	\$52.04	\$53.34	\$54.68	\$56.05	\$57.45
	Monthly	\$8,171.67	\$8,374.33	\$8,584.58	\$8,798.33	\$9,019.67	\$9,245.58	\$9,476.92	\$9,714.92	\$9,957.33
	Annual	\$98,060	\$100,492	\$103,015	\$105,580	\$108,236	\$110,947	\$113,723	\$116,579	\$119,488
55	Hourly	\$48.31	\$49.53	\$50.76	\$52.04	\$53.34	\$54.68	\$56.05	\$57.45	\$58.88
	Monthly	\$8,374.33	\$8,584.58	\$8,798.33	\$9,019.67	\$9,245.58	\$9,476.92	\$9,714.92	\$9,957.33	\$10,205.42
	Annual	\$100,492	\$103,015	\$105,580	\$108,236	\$110,947	\$113,723	\$116,579	\$119,488	\$122,465
56	Hourly	\$49.53	\$50.76	\$52.04	\$53.34	\$54.68	\$56.05	\$57.45	\$58.88	\$60.35
	Monthly	\$8,584.58	\$8,798.33	\$9,019.67	\$9,245.58	\$9,476.92	\$9,714.92	\$9,957.33	\$10,205.42	\$10,461.17
	Annual	\$103,015	\$105,580	\$108,236	\$110,947	\$113,723	\$116,579	\$119,488	\$122,465	\$125,534
57	Hourly	\$50.76	\$52.04	\$53.34	\$54.68	\$56.05	\$57.45	\$58.88	\$60.35	\$61.87
	Monthly	\$8,798.33	\$9,019.67	\$9,245.58	\$9,476.92	\$9,714.92	\$9,957.33	\$10,205.42	\$10,461.17	\$10,723.58
	Annual	\$105,580	\$108,236	\$110,947	\$113,723	\$116,579	\$119,488	\$122,465	\$125,534	\$128,683
58	Hourly	\$52.04	\$53.34	\$54.68	\$56.05	\$57.45	\$58.88	\$60.36	\$61.87	\$63.41
	Monthly	\$9,019.67	\$9,246	\$9,477	\$9,715	\$9,958	\$10,206	\$10,462	\$10,724	\$10,991
	Annual	\$108,236	\$110,947	\$113,723	\$116,579	\$119,488	\$122,465	\$125,534	\$128,683	\$131,884
59	Hourly	\$53.34	\$54.68	\$56.05	\$57.45	\$58.88	\$60.35	\$61.87	\$63.41	\$64.99
	Monthly	\$9,245.58	\$9,476.92	\$9,714.92	\$9,957.33	\$10,205.42	\$10,461.17	\$10,723.58	\$10,990.33	\$11,264.92
	Annual	\$110,947	\$113,723	\$116,579	\$119,488	\$122,465	\$125,534	\$128,683	\$131,884	\$135,179
60	Hourly	\$54.68	\$56.05	\$57.45	\$58.88	\$60.35	\$61.87	\$63.41	\$64.99	\$66.61
	Monthly	\$9,476.92	\$9,714.92	\$9,957.33	\$10,205.42	\$10,461.17	\$10,723.58	\$10,990.33	\$11,264.92	\$11,546.08
	Annual	\$113,723	\$116,579	\$119,488	\$122,465	\$125,534	\$128,683	\$131,884	\$135,179	\$138,553

Includes 2.71% COLA + additional 4.29%

### APPENDIX F: TELECOMUTING GUIDELINES AND AGREEMENT FORM

# Classified and Classified Management Telecommuting Guidelines and Process

Dear Management Team,

We have continuously explored the topic of staff telecommuting at several of our recent **President's Cabinet** (PC) meetings. In the past, we have discussed the advantages and disadvantages of revising and re-introducing the process, and have considered different opinions and perspectives. There are many sides to this topic. During these conversations, the decision to continue a telecommuting option was made thoughtfully and was not taken lightly.

We have decided to continue this option as we believe with the current structure and associated management support in place that the District and a limited group of staff will derive benefit of this option. Attached, you will find clear guidelines and structure to this process.

Along with the Telecommuting Agreement and Telecommuting Guidelines, it may be helpful to consider the following:

- Telecommuting is a privilege and not an entitlement. There are seven questions
  an employee requesting to telecommute must answer to your satisfaction (they
  are listed in the Telecommuting Guidelines). Your agreement should not be
  automatic.
- Not all classifications lend themselves to working remotely; in fact, most of our classifications do not.
- 3. Conditions may change along the way. The telecommuting agreement you create may be revisited at any time you feel it is not an effective or sufficiently productive working arrangement. For example, you may have another team member on vacation, a planned or unplanned leave of absence, or staffing change due to resignation or retirement. All of these factors create workload issues to others in your area of responsibility and could mean the end of the telecommuting agreement for the time being.
- 4. Agreeing to a telecommuting arrangement is not a solution for a difficult unit member. Because telecommuting is a privilege, the unit member will be productive and efficient, will be available during the District's normal working hours, has demonstrated the ability to perform well with minimal supervision, and values the need for flexibility. The employee requesting to telecommute may have to alter their schedule on short notice from time to time to meet an unexpected on-campus need.
- 5. This option is only available to permanent staff who have completed their probationary period in their current classification. In addition, the unit member's

- most recent evaluation must equal or exceed "meets expectations"/satisfactory performance.
- 6. This process is **not** intended for those occasional situations or occasional projects when the manager may agree to allow a staff member to work from home. This process is unrelated to requests for flexible work schedules. This process is to establish a formal agreement with a defined schedule, assuming the seven questions are answered to your satisfaction.

The decision to approve or deny a telecommuting agreement is made by the supervisor of the staff member making the request. Human Resources will review telecommuting agreement submissions for compliance and will retain a copy of the signed agreement. The agreement must be renewed annually. Any changes made during the year, must be submitted to Human Resources for compliance review.

### **TELECOMMUTING GUIDELINES**

Note: The Telecommuting Guidelines and the Telecommuting Agreement refer to employee as this process will be applied to classified bargaining unit members and classified managers interested in Telecommuting.

Telecommuting agreements are at the sole discretion of the District and are voluntary agreements between the employee and the manager/supervisor. For a variety of reasons, the District shares an interest in supporting requests from employees interested in telecommuting. It is viable to consider requests to telecommute for some positions. Not all positions lend themselves to working remotely.

### A. Rationale for telecommuting requests may include the following:

- 1. To reduce the impact on parking and traffic coming and going from campus.
- 2. To increase efficient utilization of office space and campus infrastructure resources.

To provide the opportunity for employees needing uninterrupted time to accomplish job-related tasks.

To address a medical condition requiring an accommodation identified through the Interactive Process.

### The employee agrees to the following:

- Telecommuting will not exceed three (3) days per week. Telecommuting on Mondays and Fridays is strongly discouraged.
- Job responsibilities will be fulfilled off campus as they would be if the employee were working on campus.
- 3. Job performance will not be impaired as a result of remote status.
- Working remotely won't adversely affect others in terms of workload, assignments or collaboration.
- All who are telecommuting from a single work group cannot be working remotely on same day of the week.
- 6. Normal involvement with the college will be maintained (i.e., committee participation, meeting attendance).
- 7. Must be accessible by phone during regular scheduled work hours and be prompt and responsive to campus contact (will respond within 30 minutes).
- 8. The needs and requirements of the college take priority should a conflict in scheduling occur (adjustments in telecommuting schedule may be required occasionally).

Prior to completing a request to telecommute, the employee must respond to the following questions and discuss the request with the employee's supervisor. Once agreement is reached between the employee and the supervisor, the employee must complete the Telecommuting Agreement form and submit a signed copy of this form to Human Resources for compliance review.

Respond to these questions and discuss your request with your supervisor:

- Describe your specific request to telecommute. Which criteria do you meet to be eligible for telecommuting (see above)? What telecommuting schedule are you requesting for consideration? If you are requesting to telecommute on a Monday or Friday, please provide justification.
- 2. How will you perform the essential functions of your position while working remotely?
- 3. What steps need to be taken to ensure your co-workers won't be adversely affected by working remotely during a portion of the week?
- 4. Are there other members of your work group currently telecommuting whose schedules need to be considered as part of your request?
- 5. How will your ongoing campus involvement be maintained (i.e. committee participation, meeting attendance)?
- 6. Are there any equipment requirements that need to be addressed in order for you to work remotely?
- 7. Is there any additional information which is important for your supervisor or Human Resources to know about your request to telecommute?

Revised: July 2014, April 2019, June 2019

### **Classified and Classified Management Telecommuting Agreement**

Telecommuting agreements are approved a	t the sole discretion of the District
and are voluntary agreements between the	employee and the
manager/supervisor. I	_ (employee name) request to
telecommute. This agreement begins on	and may continue
	12 months), at which time the
agreement must be reviewed for renewal. C	ontinuing to telecommute is
contingent upon sustaining acceptable perfo	
the supervisor. The supervisor will perform a	
performance and productivity. Either party m	
time within (10) days written notice and with	out adverse repercussions.

- Telecommuting day(s) will be (please circle): M T W TH F Sa Su (not to exceed 3 days per week).
- On campus days will be (please circle): M T W TH F Sa Su

Schedule changes initiated by an employee must be approved in advance by the supervisor. The duties, obligations, responsibilities and conditions of the telecommuters' employment with the District remain unchanged. The telecommuting unit member salary, retirement, vacation and sick leave benefits, and insurance coverage shall remain the same.

- Agreement to allow the employee to telecommute shall not cause the District to incur
  any related costs.
- 2. Work hours, overtime compensation, use of sick leave, and approval for use of vacation and compensatory time will conform to District policies and procedures, departmental guidelines, and/or to the appropriate collective bargaining agreement, and to the terms otherwise agreed upon by the employee and the supervisor.
- 3. Overtime to be worked must be approved in advance by the supervisor.
- 4. It is not allowable for employees to care for dependents while telecommuting.
- 5. If applicable, the employee must make appropriate dependent care arrangements during telecommuting periods.
- The employee agrees to maintain a safe and ergonomically sound work environment, to report work-related injuries to the supervisor and Risk Management at the earliest opportunity, and to hold the District harmless for injury to others at the telecommuting location
- 7. The employee agrees to allow an authorized District representative to inspect the home office as needed.
- 8. The employee agrees to provide a secure location for District equipment and materials, and will not use, or allow others to use, such equipment for purposes other than District business. All equipment, records, and materials provided by District shall remain District property. The employee agrees to allow the District reasonable access to its equipment and materials.
- 9. The employee agrees not to use their personal vehicle for District business unless

- specifically authorized by the supervisor.
- 10. The employee agrees to return District equipment, records, and materials within five (5) days of termination of this agreement. All District equipment will be returned to the campus by the employee for inspection, repair, replacement, or repossession within five (5) days written notice.
- 11. The unit member will implement best practices for effective information technology security in the home office setting, and will check with their supervisor when security matters are an issue.

Management retains the right to modify this Agreement on a temporary basis as a result of business necessity (for example, the unit member may be required to come to campus on a day usually scheduled as a telecommuting day), or as a result of a unit member request approved by the supervisor. The unit member understands they are responsible for tax and insurance consequences, if any, of this telecommuting arrangement, and for conforming to any local zoning regulations. This Agreement will be reviewed annually.

I have read this Telecommuting Agreement and agree to its terms.

Unit Member Name	Unit Member Signature	Date
Supervisor Name	Supervisor Signature	Date
Dean/Director Name	Dean/Director Signature	Date
Area VP Name	Area VP Signature	Date
VPHR Name	VPHR Signature	Date

CC: Human Resources

Revised: July 2014, September 2018, April 2019

### APPENDIX G: AB119 NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION

### MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

#### Between the

California School Employees Association and Its Santa Barbara CC Chapter 289 ("CSEA")

### And the

Santa Barbara Community College District ("District")

Whereas, the passage of Assembly Bill 119 has added sections 3555-3559 to the Government Code and amends the Public Records Act at Government Code Section 6254.3, creating new legal requirements around notice of new hires, exclusive representative access to orientation sessions, and provision of contact information for new and current employees.

Whereas, AB 119 did not establish the structure, time, and manner of CSEA's access to employees during the onboarding process but instead requires the parties to negotiate over such access by the exclusive representative.

The parties agree to the following;

### 1. DEFINITIONS

- a. "Newly Hired Public Employee" means any employee, whether permanent, temporary, full time, part time, or seasonal, hired by the District, represented by CSEA, and who is employed as of the date of the new employee orientation. The definition includes employees rehired by the District and employees reorganized into a position within the classified service where their prior position was outside the bargaining unit.
- b. "New Employee Orientation" means the onboarding process of a newly hired employee, whether in person, online, or through other means or mediums, in which employees are advised of their employment status, rights, benefits, duties and responsibilities, or any other employment-related matter.

# 2. DISTRICT NOTICE TO CSEA OF NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION AND CSEA'S MANDATORY ACCESS

- a) The District shall provide CSEA not less than ten (10) days' notice in advance of an orientation, except that a shorter notice may be provided in a specific instance where there is an urgent need critical to the employer's operations that was not reasonably foreseeable. The District agrees to provide the full legal name, date of hire, classification, and site for each new employee required to attend the orientation.
- b) In the event the District conducts a group, and/or a one on one orientation CSEA shall be provided the last fifteen (15) minutes of uninterrupted time to address newly hired classified employees during the orientation.

- c) CSEA shall have one (1) hour of paid release time for one (1) CSEA representative or two (2) when training, the Chapter President or designee, to conduct the orientation session. This release time shall not be counted against the total release time contained elsewhere in the collective bargaining agreement. The CSEA Labor Relations Representative may also attend the orientation session.
- d) The orientation session shall be held on District property during the workday of the employee (s), who shall be on paid time.
- e) The District shall include the CSEA membership application and a CSEA provided link for an electronic application, in any employee orientation packet of District materials provided to any newly hired employees. CSEA shall provide the copies of the CSEA membership applications to the District for distribution.

### 3. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

- a) The District shall provide CSEA with contact information for all employees. The contact information for new employees will be provided to CSEA electronically via a mutually agreeable secure service, within 30 days of hire or by the first pay period of the month following the hire date whichever comes first. Contact information for all employees in the bargaining unit will be provided to CSEA electronically via a mutually agreeable secure service, at least every 120 days, on the last working day of September, January, and May.
- b) This contact information shall include the following items, with each item in a field in its own column: Employee ID number; legal last name; legal first name; middle initial; job title; department; work location; home street address (incl. Apartment #); City; State; Zip Code; work, home, and personal cellular telephone numbers; and personal email addresses on file with the employer; Cal PERS status.
- <u>c)</u> Employee contact information shall be provided subject to all provisions found in Government Code 3558 and 6207.

### 4. GRIEVANCE/ARBITRATIONS

- a) If either party claims the other is violating this MOU, the merits of such dispute shall be resolved in either court, interest arbitration, or PERB with the forum to be selected by the District. If the District wishes, the arbitrator shall have authority to direct the losing party to pay the entire fee of the arbitrator. This enforcement mechanism is not precedent-setting and agreed to solely due to the unique circumstances of an AB 119 agreement and therefore may not be cited in any future negotiations between the parties.
- b) "Grievant" shall only be CSEA and its Santa Barbara City College Chapter #289.
- "Grievance" shall not require the individual or group of employees to be harmed or adversely affected.

### 5. DURATION OF AGREEMENT

- a) <u>Term</u>: This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from the date signed by the parties through June 30, 2022 and shall be automatically renewed from year to year unless either party serves written notice upon the other between March 1 and April 1, 2021, or any subsequent anniversary date, of its desire to modify the Agreement.
- b) Savings Clause: If any provisions of this agreement are held to be contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction, such provisions will not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions will continue in full force and effect. In the event of suspension or invalidation of any Article or Section of this Agreement, the parties agree to meet and negotiate within sixty (60) days after such determination for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such Article or Section.

FOR THE ASSOCIATION:	FOR THE DISTRICT:
Elizabeth Auchincloss	Paul Bishop
Chapter President	Vice President
Chapter #289	Santa Barbara Community College District
Mal World	03/12/2019

Date

Mark Moore

### APPENDIX H: ALTERNATIVE WORKWEEK SCHEDULE CHANGE FORM

### HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT ALTERNATIVE WORKWEEK SCHEDULE CHANGE FORM ☐ District Employee Name: Position Title: Department: Supervisor: **Form Instructions:** • Schedule must begin on Monday and end on Sunday. Make certain to fill in start and end times. Must include 30, 45, or 60 minute meal period. Time off must be reported in hourly increments (i.e., 9/80 must report 9 hours for full day off work). **Current Assignment: End Time** Day of Start Type of Schedule Please √ One Time Week Monday Regular (8 hours or less per day) Flexible Schedule Tuesday (8 hours or less, start & end times vary) Wednesday Compressed Schedule - 4 days/10 hours Compressed Schedule - 9 days/80 hours Thursday Friday Special Notes: Saturday Sunday

roposed Assig	nment:			
Day of Week 1	Start Time	End Time	Type of Schedule	Please √ One
Monday			Regular (8 hours or less per day)	
Tuesday		Flexible Schedule		
Tucsuay			(8 hours or less, start & end times vary)	
Wednesday			Compressed Schedule - 4 days/10 hours	
Thursday			Compressed Schedule - 9 days/80 hours	
Friday			Week 1 Special Notes:	
Saturday				
Sunday				
Day of	Start	End Time		
Week 2	Time			
Monday			Week 2 Special Notes:	
Tuesday				
Wednesday				
Thursday				
Friday				
Saturday				
Sunday				
☐ Temp	orary Chan	ige	☐ Permanent Change	;
Start Date		End	Date Start Date	

Revised 6/19/2019

Reason for the change:			
Employee Signature	Date	Supervisor Signature	Date
Dean/Director Signature	Date	Area VP Signature	Date
VP HR Signature	Date		

Revised 6/19/2019

# **APPENDIX I: COMPENSATORY TIME/OVERTIME REQUEST FORM**

# SANTA BARBARA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT CLASSIFIED PAYROLL TIME REPORT Overtime/Compensatory Time

lame										
BCC ID#										
ob Title	0					Supervisor_				
		BEGINNING WEEK DATE (MONDAY)	MON	TUE	WED	THU	FRI	SAT	SUN	WEEKLY HOURS TOTAL
leek 1	Regular hours Overtime or Comp hours									
Veek 2	Regular hours Overtime or Comp hours									
Veek 3	Regular hours Overtime or Comp hours									
Veek 4	Regular hours Overtime or Comp hours									
Week 5	Regular hours Overtime or Comp hours									
	hat as a short-tem have not exceeded					cal year.	Total O		egular Hour Comp Hour	
certify that I I imployee's S have ver	have not exceeded ignature rified that the	this limitation du	ring this fiscal	year (July 1 - DATE	June 30).	cal year.	Total O	vertime or		rs
certify that I I imployee's S have ver	have not exceeded	this limitation du	ring this fiscal	year (July 1 - DATE	June 30).	cal year.		vertime or	Comp Hour	rs
certify that I I imployee's S have ver abor in th	have not exceeded ignature rified that the ne following a	this limitation du	ring this fiscal	year (July 1 - DATE	June 30).	sal year.		vertime or 0	Comp Hour	rs
mployee's S have ver abor in the	ignature ignature rified that the ne following a	this limitation du	ring this fiscal	year (July 1 - DATE	June 30).		PAY ×	vertime or 0	Comp Hour Days Worke	rs
certify that I I	nave not exceeded ignature rified that the ne following a	this limitation du	ring this fiscal	year (July 1 - DATE	June 30).	\$	PAY ×	Vertime or 0  Total C	Comp Hour Days Worke	rs
certify that I I	nave not exceeded ignature rified that the ne following a	this limitation du	uring this fiscal	year (July 1 - DATE	June 30).	\$	PAY  ×  ×	vertime or	Comp Hour Days Worke USE \$ \$	rs
entify that II  imployee's S have ver abor in the for regular tin for regular tin	nave not exceeded ignature rified that the ne following a ne	re are funds	uring this fiscal	year (July 1 - DATE to cover th	June 30).	\$ \$	PAY  ×  ×	Total C	Comp Hour Days Worke USE \$	d
certify that I I imployee's S have ver abor in the or regular tin for regular tin for overtime	ignature ignature iffied that the ne following a	this limitation dure are funds ccount(s):	available	DATE  DATE  DATE	dune 30).	\$ \$ PAY RATE	PAY ×	Total C  ROLL DEPT.  HOURS	Comp Hour Days Worke USE \$ \$ \$ GROSS	d
mployee's S have verabor in the or regular time or regular time or overtime	nave not exceeded ignature rified that the ne following a ne	re are funds ccount(s):	available  MBERS  ations regula	DATE to cover the DATE	dune 30). his	\$ \$ PAY RATE	PAY  ×  ×  ×  shift, and a	Total C  ROLL DEPT.  HOURS	Comp Hour Days Worke USE \$ \$ \$ GROSS	d
mployee's S have vel abor in the or regular tin or regular tin or overtime suppervisor with the control of the	ignature iffied that the ne following a ne ers SIGNATURE ential is allowed refer to the Con	re are funds ccount(s):	available  MBERS  ations regula	DATE to cover the DATE	dune 30). his	\$ \$ PAY RATE	PAY  ×  ×  ×  shift, and a	Total C  ROLL DEPT.  HOURS	Comp Hour Days Worke USE \$ \$ \$ GROSS	d
imployee's S have vere abor in the corregular time or regular time or regular time or regular time. A shift differ a shift dif	ignature rified that the ne following a ne ential is allowed refer to the Con ONS: A: Be sure to co	re are funds ccount(s):  ACCOUNT NU  for all classificated Agreements	available  MBERS  ations regulant, Article 6 (in me work with	DATE  DATE  DATE  Ity assigned 6.3.7) or control or your supervision.	dune 30).  his  to a swing shi tact the Person	\$ \$ PAY RATE	PAY  ×  ×  ×  shift, and a	Total C  ROLL DEPT.  HOURS	Comp Hour Days Worke USE \$ \$ \$ GROSS	d
mployee's S have vereabor in the or regular time or regular time or overtime uppervisor a shift differ formation, NSTRUCTI	ignature iffied that the ne following a ne	re are funds ccount(s):  ACCOUNT NU  for all classificatract Agreemer	available  MBERS  ations regula  at, Article 6 (at the company)	DATE  DATE  DATE  In year (July 1 - 2	to a swing shitact the Perso	\$  \$ PAY RATE	PAY  x  x  x  shift, and a office.	Total C  ROLL DEPT.  HOURS  split shift. Fo	Comp Hour Days Worke USE \$ \$ \$ GROSS	d
imployee's S have ver abor in the or regular tin or overtime supervisor A shift differ aformation, NSTRUCTI Employee:	ignature rified that the ne following a ne ential is allowed refer to the Con ONS: A: Be sure to co	re are funds ccount(s):  ACCOUNT NU  for all classificate tract Agreement clear any overtion of the regular and over	available  available  ations regula  nt, Article 6 (i)  me work with  the form comptime hours w	DATE  DATE  DATE  rly assigned 6.3.7) or conline our supervoletely.	to a swing shi tact the Perso	\$  \$ PAY RATE	PAY  x  x  x  shift, and a office.	Total C  ROLL DEPT.  HOURS  split shift. Fo	Comp Hour Days Worke USE \$ \$ \$ GROSS	d
imployee's S have ver abor in the or regular tin or overtime supervisor A shift differ aformation, NSTRUCTI Employee:	ignature iffied that the the following a  result is allowed refer to the Con  ONS:  A: Be sure to c  B: Fill out the t  C: Enter the re  A: Assign accor	re are funds ccount(s):  ACCOUNT NU  for all classificate tract Agreement clear any overtion of the regular and over	available  available  ations regula  at, Article 6 (i)  me work with the form comptime hours w after verifyin	DATE  DATE  DATE  rly assigned 6.3.7) or conline our supervoletely.	to a swing shi tact the Perso	\$  \$ PAY RATE	PAY  x  x  x  shift, and a office.	Total C  ROLL DEPT.  HOURS  split shift. Fo	Comp Hour Days Worke USE \$ \$ \$ GROSS	d

IMPORTANT: TIME SHEETS WHICH ARE NOT FILLED OUT COMPLETELY, DATED, SIGNED OR RECEIVED ON TIME WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED FOR THE CURRENT PAY DATE.

### APPENDIX J: BOARD OF TRUSTEES RESOLUTION NO. 25 – APRIL 22, 1976

Resolution No. 25 (1975-76)

#### RESOLUTION

### OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SANTA BARBARA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

RE: VOLUNTARY RECOGNITION OF THE CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES
ASSOCIATION AS EXCLUSIVE REPRESENTATIVE FOR CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES
WHEREAS, Section 3540, et seq. of the Government Code, Title 1, Division 4,
Chapter 10.7 (Rodda Act) provides that the public school employer
may voluntarily recognize an employee organization as the exclusive representative of an appropriate unit of employees; and
WHEREAS, the California School Employees Association has requested recognition pursuant to the provisions of the "Rodda Act" and has complied with the appropriate sections of the rules and regulations
of the Educational Employment Relations Board; and
WHEREAS, the California School Employees Association has agreed not to
seek a clarification, or amendment, of the representation unit;
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the SANTA BARBARA
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT hereby grants exclusive recognition

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the SANTA BARBARA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT hereby grants exclusive recognition to the California School Employee Association for the employees in the representation unit which is described in the CSEA request for exclusive representation, dated April 2, 1976, and excluding all other positions not designated, including but not limited to those employees designated as management, supervisory, or confidential by the District.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this	22nd	day of _	. April	, 1976	
by members of the Board	d of Trustees of	the SANTA EA	ARBARA COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	
DISTRICT:	00	A Cin	<u>_</u>		
ANN GUTSHALL	President	JAMES R. GAL	RVIN	Member	
De 1/2 A VOS		Q	Jal. P.	50	)
DR. JOE W. DOBBS	Vice-President	JOYCE H. AC	WELL	Member	•
NW Ing. A	hympr	Chon	rambo Di	ce002/	
KATERYN-O. ALEXANDER	<i>Member</i>	BENJAMIN P.	J. WELLS	Member	
 22 Su		()	V		
SIDNEY-R. FRANK	Member				

## APPENDIX K: RECOGNITION REQUEST LETTER – APRIL 2, 1976

1120 South San Gabriel Blvd., Suite 230 の制制 CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION San Gabriel, CA 91776 Telephone (213) 285-2125

Califormia School Employees Association 2350 Faragon Drive , P. O. Box 610 San Jose , California 95106

and it's

Channel City Chapter # 289
22 San Dimas Ave.
Santa Barbara , Ca. 93111

April 2, 1976

CEASTON ALLO VENEZZO YLINYS

PRESIDENT'S GFFICE

Governing Board Santa Barbara Community College 721 Cliff Dr. Santa Barbara , Ca. 93109

The California School Employees Association and its Channel City Chapter #289 Hertunifer referred to as CEE, request that the Governing Board recognize CSE as the exclusive representative of the classified employee unit described below in accordance with the authority granted by Government Code Section 35kh. Honorable Members:

Attention: Dr. Olen G. Gooder Secretary to the Governing Board -- President

The unit for which CSIA request exclusive representation decomposed of approximately 138 classified employes as a reflected by the public records of the district. He request that all of the classified employes a part of the room, and are all or here completed the probationary period of the district, be sorp, and are all or here completed the probationary period of the district, be following sajor groupings of jobs: Food Serrices, Clerical and Servairial, operations and Maintenance to double clustedia/saintenance/grounds, Instructional Aides (paraprofessionals), and Transportation.

The unit excludes noon duty supervisors (by whatever mass) when the job description does not authorize or require the performance of duties other than playground supervision of sudents for the purpose of providing certificated personnel with a dity free lunch period, and those positions not a part of the classified service who work less than 20 hours a wesk and who do not recieve personnel builtis, and who do not gain personnel tattus as defined by the California Educational Code. The unit also excludes those positions which can be leavilly be declared management, confidential, and supervisory. The unit is based upon a community of interest between and away the exployees and that seathlished previous, and the fact that the proposed unit will promote the efficient operation of the district.

2.2-b (5) 1 of 5

Page 2

CSEA declares that a majority of this unit has provided CSEA with signed authorizations for representation as their sole and excitative bengaling representative for all matters relating to vages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment. While the law permits the submission of membership list to indicate support for recognition, CSEA has circulated petitions endening support for recognition, CSEA has circulated petitions.

Copies of this are attached as Exhibits A ( 1 - (1-)

STATEMENTS

A copy of CSEA is request for recognition has been filed with the appropriate regional office of the Educational Employment Relations Board.

employer as the exclusive representative of any of the classified employees included in the unit described above. CEPA contifies that no other employee organization is known to have a written agreement with the district covering any employee included in the unit described in this request for recognition. CSEA certifies that no other employee organization within the 12 months preceding this request for recognition is known to have been recognised by the

Acoprdingly, CSEA respectfully requests recognition as the exclusive representative for all employees a part of the unit described herein for the purpose of meeting, megotiating, and representing each and every employee of that unit.

ORGANIZATIONAL REPRESENTATIVE

Any communications or questions regarding this request should be directed to:

Leonard G. Bomilla Field R California School Employees As 3704 State Street Suite 214 Santa Barbara, Ca. 93105 Field Representative Association

Phone (805) 682-22012

Respectfully submitted

Attachments: Exhibits & (1 - 12)

CC: Educational Exployment Relations Board -2-

95